
ACTIVE NETWORK INC
Form 10-Q
November 14, 2011
Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED September 30, 2011

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM              TO             

Commission file number: 001-35187

The Active Network, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Delaware 33-0884962
(State or Other Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
10182 Telesis Court, Suite 100

San Diego, California 92121

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(858) 964-3800

(Registrant�s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer�, �accelerated filer�, �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer x  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    ¨  Yes    x  No

As of October 31, 2011, the registrant had 54,263,882 shares of Common Stock ($0.001 par value) outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE ACTIVE NETWORK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value)

September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

(Unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 139,023 $ 31,441
Restricted cash 5,000 5,000
Accounts receivable, net 61,192 34,096
Inventories 1,102 �  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,914 4,181

Total current assets 211,231 74,718
Property and equipment, net 28,936 28,181
Software development costs, net 43,620 37,013
Goodwill 213,357 207,113
Intangible assets, net 32,429 41,208
Deposits and other assets 2,040 2,315

Total assets $ 531,613 $ 390,548

Liabilities, preferred stock and stockholders� equity (deficit)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 4,503 $ 5,372
Registration fees payable 76,172 40,667
Accrued expenses 36,103 32,172
Deferred revenue 52,672 34,013
Current portion of debt �  16,866
Capital lease obligations, current portion 2,906 1,983
Other current liabilities 2,576 1,630

Total current liabilities 174,932 132,703
Debt, net of current portion �  27,537
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 649 1,663
Other long-term liabilities 5,644 4,353
Deferred tax liability 19,556 17,960

Total liabilities 200,781 184,216
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value�authorized, 0 and 146,856 shares; issued and outstanding,
0 and 131,372 shares �  21,187
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value�authorized, 0 and 73,249 shares; issued and
outstanding, 0 and 71,751 shares �  371,126

Total preferred stock �  392,313
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Stockholders� equity (deficit):
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value�authorized, 100,000 and 0 shares; no shares issued and outstanding �  �  
Common stock, $0.001 par value�authorized, 1,000,000 and 65,000 shares; issued, 56,035 and 9,755
shares; outstanding, 54,259 and 7,980 shares 55 9
Treasury stock (at cost, 1,776 shares) (11,959) (11,959) 
Additional paid-in capital 602,194 65,224
Accumulated other comprehensive income 7,318 8,866
Accumulated deficit (266,776) (248,121) 

Total stockholders� equity (deficit) 330,832 (185,981) 

Total liabilities, preferred stock and stockholders� equity (deficit) $ 531,613 $ 390,548

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE ACTIVE NETWORK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Net Revenue:
Technology revenue $ 76,341 $ 62,400 $ 225,002 $ 188,504
Marketing services revenue 13,287 10,693 36,343 29,473

Total net revenue 89,628 73,093 261,345 217,977
Cost of net revenue:
Cost of technology revenue 38,291 29,308 109,986 88,682
Cost of marketing services revenue 1,599 1,816 4,241 4,562

Total cost of net revenue 39,890 31,124 114,227 93,244

Gross profit 49,738 41,969 147,118 124,733
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 17,116 15,041 52,970 44,799
Research and development 17,628 15,048 50,181 46,400
General and administrative 11,737 10,101 34,633 32,958
Amortization of intangibles 3,669 4,029 11,090 12,149

Total operating expenses 50,150 44,219 148,874 136,306

Loss from operations (412) (2,250) (1,756) (11,573) 
Interest income 32 43 91 113
Interest expense (109) (1,325) (2,799) (4,089) 
Other income (expense), net (33) 762 109 141

Loss before provision for income taxes (522) (2,770) (4,355) (15,408) 
Provision for income taxes 910 1,064 2,490 2,772

Net loss (1,432) (3,834) (6,845) (18,180) 

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock �  (7,055) (11,810) (20,828) 

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (1,432) $ (10,889) $ (18,655) $ (39,008) 

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic $ (0.03) $ (1.51) $ (0.62) $ (5.53) 

Diluted $ (0.03) $ (1.51) $ (0.62) $ (5.53) 

Weighted-average shares used to compute net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders:
Basic 53,701 7,228 29,993 7,050
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Diluted 53,701 7,228 29,993 7,050

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE ACTIVE NETWORK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010
Operating activities
Net loss $ (6,845) $ (18,180) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 32,654 29,287
Loss on extinguishment of debt 538 �  
Allowance for doubtful accounts 590 543
Stock-based compensation expense 4,782 4,542
Deferred tax liability 1,824 1,348
Accretion of discount on debt 191 773
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (27,554) (11,926) 
Inventories (1,102) �  
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,530) (891) 
Accounts payable 1,239 923
Registration fees payable 35,505 17,174
Accrued expenses 3,561 5,309
Deferred revenue 18,089 10,800
Deferred rent 663 828

Net cash provided by operating activities 61,605 40,530
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (8,991) (11,186) 
Software development costs (13,898) (12,169) 
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (4,082) (125) 
Payment of contingent consideration (625) (962) 

Net cash used in investing activities (27,596) (24,442) 
Financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and common stock warrants 3,072 2,338
Payments on capital lease obligations (2,207) (1,742) 
Repayment of long-term obligations (41,628) (6,177) 
Repurchase of unvested common stock (13) �  
Net proceeds from initial public offering 114,700 �  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 73,924 (5,581) 
Effect of exchange rates on cash (351) (29) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 107,582 10,478
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 31,441 26,381

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 139,023 $ 36,859

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
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Cash paid during the year for interest $ 2,799 $ 2,548

Cash paid during the year for taxes $ 510 $ 332

Supplemental disclosures of noncash financing and investing activities
Fixed asset purchases included in accounts payable $ 2,149 $ 796

Acquisition of equipment and software under capital leases $ 2,116 $ �  

Issuance of warrants $ �  $ 76

Conversion of preferred stock $ 404,122 $ �  

Conversion of debt $ 3,504 $ �  

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Active Network, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. Business

The Active Network, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries (�Active� or the �Company�), provide organization-based cloud computing
applications that form an online network connecting a fragmented and diverse group of activity and event organizers with a large base of
potential participants. The Company�s technology platform transforms the way organizers manage their activities and events by automating
online registrations and streamlining other critical management functions, while driving consumer participation to their activities and events.

Initial Public Offering

In May 2011, the Company completed an initial public offering (�IPO�) of its common stock in which it sold and issued 12,650,000 shares of
common stock, of which 4,427,778 were sold by its selling shareholders, at an issue price of $15.00 per share, resulting in proceeds, net of
underwriting discounts but before deducting offering expenses, of approximately $114.7 million to the Company. As a result of the IPO, all
shares of the Company�s convertible preferred stock and redeemable convertible preferred stock converted into 34,631,891 shares of common
stock and certain warrants to purchase common stock were net exercised into 420,365 shares of common stock.

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Active and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Unaudited Interim Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2011, the consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 and consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 are
unaudited. The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual financial statements and,
in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, which include only normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the
Company�s financial condition and results of operations and cash flows for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. The
financial data and other information disclosed in these notes to the consolidated financial statements related to the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010 are unaudited. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for fiscal year 2011 or for any other interim period or for any other future year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America (�GAAP�) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes technology revenue primarily from registration fees and related hosting and implementation services. The Company
also records revenue for marketing services. The Company recognizes revenue when a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the services have been rendered, the fee is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. The
Company�s arrangements do not contain general rights of return.

The Company assesses whether the fee is fixed or determinable, and collection is probable, at the time of the transaction. In determining whether
the fee is fixed or determinable, the Company compares the payment terms of the transaction to its standard payment terms and whether
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payment is free of contingencies or significant uncertainties. If a significant portion of the fee is considered to have extended payment terms or
the fee is subject to adjustment, the Company accounts for the fee as not being fixed or determinable and recognizes revenue as the payments
become due. The Company assesses whether collection is probable based on a number of factors, including the customer�s past transaction
history and credit-worthiness. The Company does not request collateral from its customers. If the Company determines that collection of a fee is
not probable, the Company defers the fee and recognizes revenue at the time collection becomes probable, which is generally upon receipt of
cash.
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The Company generally recognizes registration revenue when received, net of registration fees paid to event organizers, where the Company is
acting as an agent of event organizers. Net registration revenue comprised 67% and 71% of total net revenue for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and 69% and 73% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In certain
circumstances, the Company pre-purchases registrations from event organizers and bears the risks and rewards of ownership. Registration
revenue associated with these transactions is recognized on a gross basis, as the Company is the primary obligor and bears inventory and credit
risk. Cash collected in advance of the event is recorded as deferred revenue until the event occurs. Revenue recognized on a gross basis
comprised 1% and 0% of total net revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and less than 1% and 0% for
the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

On January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the new accounting standard for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements which provides guidance
on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated, and how the consideration should be
allocated. This guidance requires an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using the �best estimate of selling price� (�BESP�) of deliverables
if it does not have vendor-specific objective evidence (�VSOE�) of selling price based on historical stand-alone sales or third-party evidence (�TPE�)
of selling price. Due to the unique nature of some of the Company�s multiple deliverable revenue arrangements, the Company may not be able to
establish selling prices based on historical stand-alone sales using VSOE or TPE, therefore, the Company may use its best estimate to establish
selling prices for these arrangements under the new accounting standard. The Company establishes its best estimates within a range of selling
prices considering multiple factors including, but not limited to, factors such as customer base, size of transaction, available media inventory,
pricing strategies and market conditions. The Company believes the use of the BESP allows revenue recognition in a manner consistent with the
underlying economics of the transaction. The adoption of this amended standard did not have a significant impact on the Company�s revenue
recognition for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements.

Many customers who use the Company�s hosting services or license its software also enter into separate professional services and training
arrangements with the Company. In addition, certain of the Company�s hosting agreements include up-front payments for implementation of
hosting services. In determining whether professional services and implementation revenue should be accounted for separately, the Company
evaluates (among other factors): the nature of the deliverables; whether they are ready for their intended use by the customer upon receipt; the
nature of the implementation services; the availability of services from other vendors; whether the timing of payments for license revenue is
coincident with performance of services and whether milestones or acceptance criteria exist that affect the realizability of the hosting or software
license fee. For up-front and other revenues received for implementation services associated with hosting arrangements, the Company defers the
related revenue and records revenue over the term of the hosting contract since the implementation and hosting do not have stand-alone value.
For license and professional services that qualify for separate accounting, such as arrangements that involve off-the-shelf software, the services
do not include significant alterations to the features and functionality of the software, the services are primarily comprised of implementation
services and fair value exists for the undelivered elements, software revenue is generally recognized when the software is delivered and service
revenue is recognized when the services are performed.

For license and professional service arrangements that do not qualify for separate accounting, such as arrangements that involve significant
modification or customization of the software, arrangements that include milestones or customer specific acceptance criteria, or where payment
for the software license is tied to the performance of professional services, software license revenue is generally recognized together with the
professional services revenue when services have been rendered. Penalties from customers related to power outages or other technical
disruptions are recognized in the period in which such amounts become known and are estimable as a reduction of revenue or an increase to cost
of revenue. If the total estimated costs to complete a project exceed the total contract amount, indicating a loss, the entire anticipated loss is
recognized currently. A majority of such arrangements are recognized together with the professional services.

Maintenance revenue consists of fees for providing software updates on a when-and-if available basis and technical support to software products
(�post contract customer support� or �PCS�). Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the terms of the agreement.

Marketing service revenue consists of online and integrated field marketing campaigns and membership programs. The Company�s online
marketing services include online advertising, e-mail marketing and targeted newsletter promotions. Banner, button and e-mail advertisements
are impression-based, with the revenue based on the number of times the advertisement is displayed or delivered over the contract period.
Impression-based contract revenue is primarily recognized as the impression is displayed on the Company�s web site or delivered by e-mail to the
intended addressee. The Company�s field marketing services include event promotions, sponsorships and sample placements and are defined
contractually with individual customers. Field marketing revenue is recognized over the term of the contract or when revenue is earned based on
the performance of services associated with a series of events. Revenue from membership programs is recognized over the term of the
membership period.

Significant management judgments and estimates must be made in connection with determination of the revenue to be recognized in any
accounting period. If the Company makes different judgments or utilized different estimates for any period, material differences in the amount
and timing of revenue recognized could result.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Carrying amounts of the Company�s financial instruments including accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, accounts
payable, registration fees payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short maturities. Carrying amounts of the Company�s
acquisition related notes payable, term loans and line of credit approximate fair value as the interest rates on these instruments are primarily
based on market rates of interest. The fair values of the Company�s cash equivalents are detailed further in Note 4.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company�s cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable are potentially subject to concentration of credit risk. Cash and cash equivalents
are deposited with financial institutions that management believes are creditworthy. As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
substantially all of the Company�s cash has been invested in money market funds or non-interest bearing accounts. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers� financial condition, and generally requires no collateral from its customers. The Company maintains
an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based on various factors, including the Company�s review of credit profiles of its customers,
contractual terms and conditions, current economic trends and historical payment experience (Note 5).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investment securities with remaining maturities at the date of purchase of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Management determines the appropriate classification of marketable securities at the time of purchase and evaluates such
designation as of each balance sheet date.

Restricted Cash

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company had $5 million of cash restricted from withdrawal and held by a bank as collateral
for a credit facility (Note 11).

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable includes trade accounts receivables from the Company�s customers and credit and debit card receivables due from third
party financial institutions attributable to the Company�s registration receivable process.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market on a first in, first out (�FIFO�) basis. Inventories are comprised of purchases of registrations
from event organizers for customer activities and events that are intended to be sold directly to end-user participants. The Company reviews its
inventory for estimated excess inventory based on estimated future usage and sales. Inventory reserves are established based upon such
judgments for any inventories that are identified as having a net realizable value less than their cost, which is further reduced by related selling
expenses. Whenever inventory is written down, a new cost basis is established and the inventory is not subsequently written up if conditions
improve.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three to five years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the shorter of the
estimated useful lives or the terms of their respective leases.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

Costs to develop internal use software are capitalized provided these costs are expected to be recoverable, and are amortized on a
product-by-product basis using the straight line method over the estimated economic life of the application, which is generally two to five years,
beginning when the asset is substantially ready for use. Costs incurred during the preliminary development stage, as well as maintenance and
training costs are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalized software development costs of $4.4 million and $3.7 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $13.9 million and $12.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Amortization of internal software development costs is reflected in cost of revenue.
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Goodwill

         Goodwill is not amortized but instead is tested at least annually for impairment, or more frequently when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. The Company performs the impairment test annually during the fourth quarter. A
two-step test is used to identify the potential impairment and to measure the amount of goodwill impairment, if any. The first step is to compare
the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying
amount, goodwill is considered not impaired; otherwise, goodwill is impaired and the loss is measured by performing step two. Under step two,
the impairment loss is measured by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill. The
guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets requires impairment testing based on reporting units. The Company periodically re-evaluates
its business and has determined that it operates in two segments, which the Company considers its reporting units. Therefore, goodwill is tested
at the reporting unit level.
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For purposes of goodwill impairment testing, the Company estimates its fair value using generally accepted valuation methodologies, including
market and income based approaches, and relevant data available through and as of the testing date. The market approach is a valuation method
in which fair value is estimated based on observed prices in actual transactions and on asking prices for similar assets. Under the market
approach, the valuation process is essentially that of comparison and correlation between the subject asset and other similar assets. The income
approach is a method in which fair value is estimated based on the cash flows that an asset could be expected to generate over its useful life,
including residual value cash flows. These cash flows are then discounted to their present value using a rate of return that accounts for the
relative risk of not realizing the estimated annual cash flows and for the time value of money.

To date, the Company has determined that there has been no impairment of goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets which includes amortizable intangible and tangible assets in accordance with
authoritative guidance on accounting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. Acquired intangible assets with definite useful lives are
amortized over their useful lives. The Company evaluates long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. The Company recognizes such impairment in the event the
net book value of such assets exceeds their fair value. No long-lived assets impairment losses were incurred in the fiscal periods presented.

Registration Fees Payable

Registration fees payable represent the portion of the registration fees payable to event organizers, park and recreation department
administrators, league administrators and other customers. Cash collected on behalf of customers is included in cash and cash equivalents prior
to remitting the amounts owed to the Company�s customers.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock incentive plans under which options to purchase common stock and restricted stock units have been granted to
employees, consultants and directors. The stock options have been granted to employees with exercise prices equal to the fair value of the
underlying stock. Prior to the IPO, the board of directors determined the value of the underlying stock by considering a number of factors,
including historical and projected financial results, the risks the Company faced at the time, the preferences of the Company�s preferred stock and
the lack of liquidity of the Company�s common stock. After the IPO, the fair value of common stock was determined using the quoted closing
market price of the Company�s common stock on the date of grant.

Under the Company�s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �ESPP�), eligible officers and employees may purchase a limited amount of common
stock at a discount to the market price in accordance with the terms of the plan as described in Note 16.

The Company can grant stock awards that contain certain performance conditions. The Company recognizes compensation cost for awards with
performance conditions when the performance conditions have been determined and based upon the probability of that performance condition
being met, net of an estimate for pre-vesting forfeitures.

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model as the most appropriate method for determining the estimated fair value of its
share-based awards. The Black-Scholes model requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions which determine the fair value of
share-based awards, including the option�s expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock. The Company estimates its expected
term and the expected volatility of its common stock on the date of grant based on the average expected term and the average volatilities of
similar publicly-traded entities. The fair value of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service periods
on a straight-line basis in the Company�s consolidated statements of operations. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company makes certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement purposes. These estimates and
judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and
expense for tax and financial statement purposes.
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The Company assesses the likelihood that it will be able to recover its deferred tax assets. The Company considers all available evidence, both
positive and negative, including historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance. If it is more likely than not that the
Company will not recover its deferred tax assets, the Company will increase its provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against
the deferred tax assets that it estimates will not ultimately be recoverable.
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Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are expensed as they are incurred. The Company incurred advertising costs of approximately $0.8 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $2.6 million and $1.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Advertising costs are included in sales and marketing on the consolidated statements of operations.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency for the majority of the Company�s foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. For those subsidiaries, the assets and
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at average
exchange rates for the period. Certain foreign subsidiaries designate the U.S. dollar as the functional currency. For those subsidiaries, assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities and
historical exchange rates for nonmonetary assets and liabilities. Foreign currency translation adjustments are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders� equity (deficit) or in other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Foreign currency exchange gains and losses are recorded in other income (expense), net. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses were $0
million and ($0.5) million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and ($0.1) million and $0.1 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss consists of two components, net loss and other comprehensive loss. Other comprehensive loss refers to revenue, expenses,
gains and losses that under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles are recorded as an element of stockholders� equity (deficit) but are
excluded from net loss. The Company�s other comprehensive loss consists of foreign currency translation adjustments from those subsidiaries not
using the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. The Company has disclosed comprehensive loss as a component of stockholders� equity
(deficit). Comprehensive loss consists of the following (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010

Net loss $ (1,432) $ (3,834) $ (6,845) $ (18,180) 
Foreign currency translation (2,720) 764 (1,548) 848

Total comprehensive loss $ (4,152) $ (3,070) $ (8,393) $ (17,332) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued an amendment to increase the prominence of items reported in other
comprehensive income. These amendments eliminate the option to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement
of changes in stockholders� equity and require that all changes in stockholders� equity�except investments by, and distributions to, owners�be
presented either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In addition, these
amendments require that the Company present on the face of the financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified
from other comprehensive income to net income in the statement(s) where the components of net income and the components of other
comprehensive income are presented. These new standards are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011, and
are to be applied retrospectively. These amended standards will affect the presentation of other comprehensive income but will not affect the
Company�s financial position or results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued revised guidance to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment. Under the revised guidance,
entities have the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. If, after
assessing qualitative factors, an entity determines it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, then performing the two-step impairment test is unnecessary. The updates are effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 18



tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted. The Company will adopt this revised guidance
during the annual goodwill impairment test in the year ended December 31, 2012, and does not expect that the adoption will have a material
effect on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

3. Business Combinations

While the Company uses its best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to value the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed on the acquisition date, its estimates and assumptions are subject to refinement. As a result, during the
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preliminary purchase price allocation period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, the Company records adjustments to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed with a corresponding offset to goodwill. The Company records adjustments to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed subsequent to the purchase price allocation period in the Company�s operating results in the period in which the adjustments
were determined.

Fellowship Technologies, Inc.

In February 2011, the Company acquired Fellowship Technologies, Inc. (�Fellowship�), a provider of web-based software to religious institutions.
The acquisition enables the Company to strengthen its position as a technology leader and broaden its customer base. The purchase
consideration was approximately 1,125,000 shares of the Company�s common stock valued at approximately $8.9 million. The Company also
assumed certain office and facility leases of $4.6 million under noncancelable leases that expire at various times through 2017. The results of
Fellowship�s operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the Fellowship acquisition, as of the date of the acquisition, is as follows (in thousands)
(unaudited):

Cash $ 520
Accounts receivable 195
Prepaid and other assets 15
Fixed assets 530
Security deposits 58
Goodwill 5,680
Intangible assets 3,568
Accounts payable (101) 
Deferred revenue (528) 
Capital lease obligations (481) 
Other liabilities (187) 
Unfavorable leases (404) 

Total purchase price $ 8,865

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination. The Company allocated the purchase price to the tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable intangible assets acquired based on their estimated fair values. The goodwill is deductible for tax
purposes. The Company recorded the fair value of identifiable intangible assets using an income valuation approach which is based on Level 3
inputs in the fair value hierarchy. The following table summarizes the identifiable intangible assets acquired as of the date of the acquisition
(dollars in thousands) (unaudited):

Gross Amount
at Acquisition

Date
Amortization

Period
Trademarks $ 197 3 years
Customer contract/relationships 2,730 4 years
Complete technology 641 4 years

$ 3,568

11
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Other Business Combinations

During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company acquired operations from two other businesses including a provider of
web-based church management solutions and a provider of online registration for endurance events. The Company acquired the assets of these
two businesses in exchange for $4.6 million in cash. These acquisitions enable the Company to strengthen its position as a technology leader and
broaden its customer base in the faith and endurance spaces.

Cash $ 14
Accounts receivable 145
Prepaid and other assets 12
Goodwill 1,362
Intangible assets 3,427
Accounts payable (20) 
Accrued expenses (27) 
Deferred revenue (296) 

Total purchase price $ 4,617

The acquisitions were accounted for as purchase business combinations. The Company allocated the purchase price to the tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable intangible assets acquired based on their estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price
over the aggregate fair value was recorded as goodwill, which is deductible for tax purposes. The allocation of purchase price is preliminary. As
of September 30, 2011, the Company was in process of determining the fair value of the intangible assets and goodwill. The Company recorded
the fair value of identifiable intangible assets using an income valuation approach which is based on Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.
The following table summarizes the identifiable intangible assets acquired as of the date of the acquisition (dollars in thousands):

Gross Amount
at Acquisition

Date
Amortization

Period
Customer contract/relationships 3,392 3 years
Complete technology 35 3 years

$ 3,427

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company acquired operations from an integrated website provider and certain assets of a
provider of online and mobile communications software and related technology services for event registrations in exchange for $0.1 million in
cash and 223,500 shares of the Company�s common stock valued at approximately $0.9 million. In addition, the Company may be required to
make earn-out payments between fiscal 2011 through 2015 based on the achievement of certain sales milestones in each of the respective years.
The Company determined that the achievement of the milestones is not likely, and therefore, no liability was recorded as of September 30, 2011
or December 31, 2010. These acquisitions enable the Company to strengthen its position as a technology leader and broaden its customer base.

Accounts receivable $ 136
Goodwill 155
Intangible assets 752
Other liabilities (22) 
Gain on bargain purchase (21) 

Total purchase price $ 1,000
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The acquisitions were accounted for as purchase business combinations. The Company allocated the purchase price to the tangible assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and identifiable intangible assets acquired based on their estimated fair values. For one acquisition, the excess of
the purchase price over the aggregate fair value was recorded as goodwill, which is deductible for tax purposes. For the other acquisition, the
Company realized an immaterial benefit in the consolidated statements of operations for the
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excess of the aggregate fair value of the assets acquired over the purchase price. The Company recorded the fair value of identifiable intangible
assets using an income valuation approach which is based on Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy. The following table summarizes the
identifiable intangible assets acquired as of the date of the acquisition (dollars in thousands):

Gross Amount
at Acquisition

Date
Amortization

Period
Customer contract/relationships $ 752 3 years

As part of one acquisition, the Company received approximately $3.0 million to subsidize certain costs of building and maintaining the
infrastructure necessary to service customer contracts. This amount has been deferred on the Company�s consolidated balance sheets and will be
amortized to general and administrative expenses on the Company�s consolidated statements of operations over the expected life of the contract.
Amortization was approximately $0.2 million and $0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $0.6
million and $0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

4. Fair Value Measurements

FASB guidance for fair value measurements clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that
should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such
assumptions, the guidance establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: (Level 1)
observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; (Level 2) inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable
either directly or indirectly; and (Level 3) unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the Company to develop
its own assumptions. This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when determining fair value.

The Company�s cash equivalents are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted market prices or
broker or dealer quotations. The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices in active markets include most U.S. government and
agency securities, sovereign government obligations and money market securities. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy.

The Company�s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as of September 30, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

September 30, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 191 $ �  $ �  $ 191

The Company�s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 18,169 $ �  $ �  $ 18,169
Accrued liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ �  $ �  $ 625 $ 625

Level 3 liabilities include contingent milestone consideration payable to selling shareholders, the value of which was determined based on the
probability of achieving specific milestones and the probability weighted discount on cash flows. Any change in the fair value of the contingent
milestone consideration subsequent to the acquisition date will be recognized in earnings. This fair value measurement is based on significant
inputs not observed in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement. Level 3 instruments are valued based on unobserved inputs that
are supported by little or no market activity and reflect the Company�s own assumptions in measuring fair value. The Company made significant
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assumptions to establish inputs for the contingent consideration calculation using discount rates ranging from 10% to 14% to calculate the fair
value of the future payments. The Company recorded contingent consideration of $0.6 million at the time of acquisition. During May 2011, the
outstanding liability of $0.6 million was settled in full and no contingent consideration remained as of September 30, 2011.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 (in thousands):

Contingent
Consideration

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 625
Settlement of contingent consideration (625) 

Balance at September 30, 2011 $ �  

5. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable, net, by category is as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

Accounts receivable $ 51,490 $ 26,850
Registration receivable 11,258 8,626
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (1,556) (1,380) 

Accounts receivable, net $ 61,192 $ 34,096

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers� financial condition and generally requires no collateral from its customers.
Allowances for doubtful accounts are established based on various factors including credit profiles of the Company�s customers, contractual
terms and conditions, historical payments, returns and discounts experience and current economic trends. The Company reviews its allowances
monthly by assessing individual accounts receivable over a specific aging and amount, and all other balances on a pooled basis based on
historical collection experience. Accounts receivable are written off on a case-by-case basis, net of any amounts that may be collected.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment by category is as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

Computer and software $ 56,885 $ 46,653
Furniture and fixtures 9,925 9,529
Leasehold improvements 2,694 2,421

Total 69,504 58,603
Less accumulated depreciation (40,568) (30,422) 

Property and equipment, net $ 28,936 $ 28,181

Depreciation expense was $3.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $10.3 million and $9.9
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Included in fixed assets are $8.2 million and $6.1 million of equipment under capital lease at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively. Accumulated amortization of assets under capital lease totaled $4.9 million and $3.2 million at September 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively.
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7. Software Development Costs

Capitalized software development costs are as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

Software development costs $ 61,113 $ 47,691
Accumulated amortization (17,493) (10,678) 

Software development costs, net $ 43,620 $ 37,013

Amortization expense was $2.6 million and $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $7.0
million and $3.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

14

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 26



Table of Contents

8. Goodwill

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 is as follows (in thousands):

Technology
Services

Marketing
Services Total

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 194,789 $ 12,324 $ 207,113
Goodwill arising from acquisitions 7,042 �  7,042
Effect of exchange rate changes (798) �  (798) 

Balance at September 30, 2011 $ 201,033 $ 12,324 $ 213,357

9. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized using a combination of straight-line and accelerated methods based on the expected cash flows from the assets.

The carrying values of amortized intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Intellectual property $ 25,810 $ (18,938) $ 6,872 $ 25,571 $ (14,992) $ 10,579
Non-compete agreements 952 (952) �  952 (922) 30
Customer relationships 32,561 (25,443) 7,118 26,516 (21,685) 4,831
Trade names 9,787 (5,314) 4,473 9,796 (4,713) 5,083
Customer contracts 44,630 (30,664) 13,966 45,344 (24,659) 20,685

$ 113,740 $ (81,311) $ 32,429 $ 108,179 $ (66,971) $ 41,208

Amortization of intellectual property is recorded in cost of revenue, while the amortization of other acquired intangible assets is included in
operating expenses. The following table summarizes the amortization expense of acquired intangible assets for the periods indicated (in
thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Cost of revenue�Technology $ 1,267 $ 1,069 $ 3,820 $ 3,280
Cost of revenue�Marketing 127 134 400 401
Operating expenses 3,669 4,029 11,090 12,149

Total $ 5,063 $ 5,232 $ 15,310 $ 15,830

10. Accrued Expenses

The following table presents the detail of accrued expenses for the periods presented (in thousands):
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September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

Accrued compensation $ 14,587 $ 13,678
Sales and other foreign taxes 6,282 5,191
Other 15,234 13,303

Total $ 36,103 $ 32,172

As of September 30, 2011, accrued compensation was comprised of accrued salaries of $7.3 million, accrued personal time off of $3.3 million,
accrued self-insurance of $0.8 million, amounts payable for 401K contributions of $0.2 million, deferred bonuses of $2.4 million, and
accumulated employee deductions for stock purchase under the Company�s Employee Stock Purchase Plan of $0.6. As of December 31, 2010,
accrued compensation was comprised of accrued salaries of $4.6 million, accrued personal time off of $0.3 million, amounts payable for 401K
contributions of $0.1 million, and deferred bonuses of $8.7 million.

15
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11. Long-Term Debt and Lines of Credit

2007 Loan and Security Agreement

In March 2007, the Company entered into a loan and security agreement (the �Agreement�) with Escalate Capital I, L.P. (�Escalate�) and Gold Hill
Capital Venture Lending 03, L.P. (�Gold Hill�) which allowed the Company to draw a minimum of $15 million, up to a maximum of $20 million
from a financial institution. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company was required to make interest-only payments on a monthly basis
through February 2009 bearing an interest rate of 6.75% per annum, after which borrowings under the agreement were repayable over 24 months
at an interest rate of 6.75% per annum. In addition, a payment-in-kind (�PIK�) interest was added to the outstanding principal amount at a rate of
3.15% compounded monthly and was payable at the earlier of maturity or repayment of the loan. The Company had the option to repay the loans
without penalty prior to maturity. In conjunction with the Agreement, the Company issued 146,710 warrants to Escalate and 107,530 warrants to
Gold Hill (Note 15). The loan was collateralized by substantially all of the Company�s assets, excluding certain registration cash and intellectual
property and restricted the Company�s ability to raise additional debt financing and pay dividends.

In December 2007, the Agreement was amended to increase borrowings up to $35 million.

In April 2009, the Agreement was amended to extend the repayment commencement dates and the maturity dates of Gold Hill advances.
Outstanding borrowings were repayable over a 24 month period beginning in March 2010 through December 2012. The amendment required the
payment of certain fees and costs of up to $0.1 million to the financial institution, and at the end of the repayment period, the Company was
required to make a final payment of $0.3 million. If any portion of the loan made by this financial institution was prepaid, a corresponding
portion of the final payment would also be required to be prepaid.

In April 2010, the Agreement was amended to change the interest rate for Escalate from 6.75% to 12% and eliminate the 3.15% PIK interest
commencing on February 1, 2010. The amended agreement also changed the principal payment schedule of the remaining balance. In addition,
the Company issued 20,000 warrants to Escalate to purchase the Company�s common stock (Note 15).

In December 2010, the Company entered into an amendment to the debt agreement with Gold Hill and Escalate to change the principal payment
schedule of the remaining balance and to extend the maturity date to May 2012, which the Company treated as a modification to its existing
debt. The amendment to the Gold Hill agreement also changed the interest rate from 6.75% to 12% and eliminated the 3.15% PIK interest
commencing on December 1, 2010. In addition, Gold Hill and Escalate were issued warrants to purchase 23,500 and 31,500 shares of common
stock, respectively (Note 15).

In May 2011, the Company fully repaid $23.7 million of the outstanding principal and the Agreement was terminated. The early repayment of
the debt resulted in a loss on extinguishment of $0.5 million, which is reflected in interest expense in the Company�s consolidated statements of
operations. The warrants were net exercised on the closing date of the Company�s IPO and the Company issued 131,021 and 198,196 shares of
common stock to Gold Hill and Escalate, respectively.

As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $0 million and $13.0 million with Escalate,
respectively and outstanding borrowings of $0 million and $14.6 million with Gold Hill, respectively.

2008 Loan and Security Agreement

In October 2008, the Company entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (�LSA�) with Square 1 Bank (�Square 1�) which allowed the Company
to borrow up to $5.0 million under a term loan and up to $7.0 million under a line of credit (�Line�). For borrowings under the term loan, the
Company was required to make interest-only payments on a monthly basis for the first six months, after which borrowings were repayable over
30 months. The interest rate for the term loan was prime plus 1% and was due to mature in October 2011. For borrowings under the LSA, the
Company is required to maintain a cash balance of $5.0 million in an account with Square 1 which is presented as restricted cash on the
Company�s consolidated balance sheets at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 (Note 2). Under the terms of the Line, borrowings cannot
exceed 80% of the Company�s eligible accounts receivable and carry an interest rate of prime plus 1% and was to mature on July 2010. The loan
is collateralized by substantially all of the Company�s assets, excluding certain client cash and intellectual property, and is subject to certain
covenants which, if not met, could constitute an event of default. These covenants include maintaining the required quick ratio and the
non-occurrence of a material adverse change in the business, operations or conditions of the Company. As of September 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliance with all specified financial covenants.

In April 2010, the LSA was amended to allow the Company to grant to Central Bank a junior lien on an asset and to revise the earnout payment
schedule.
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In July 2010, the LSA was amended to change the interest rate for advances under the Line to the greater of (i) prime plus 1% or (ii) 5% and
further extended the maturity date to July 2011. The amendment also changed the amount the Company is allowed to borrow under the Line to
$12.0 million less borrowings outstanding under the term loan.

In May 2011, the Company fully repaid $4.7 million of the outstanding principal of the term loan under the LSA. The early repayment of the
debt did not result in any gain or loss on extinguishment.

In August 2011, the LSA was amended to extend the maturity date to August 2012.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, outstanding borrowings from Square 1 were approximately $0 million and $1.7
million under the term loan and approximately $0 million and $7.3 million under the Line. There was $6.2 million and $2.0 million available
under the Line as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

ALS Acquisition Notes Payable

In connection with the ALS acquisition, the Company assumed approximately $7.3 million of debt held by Pinnacle Financial Partners
(�Pinnacle�) and the Bank of Celina (�Celina�). Subsequent to the acquisition, the Company refinanced approximately $1.8 million of the debt with
Pinnacle. Under the terms of the loans held by Pinnacle, the Company was required to make principal and interest payments, on a monthly basis,
over a period of 36 months to 60 months at interest rates ranging from 6.25% to 9.25% per annum. Under the terms of the loan held by Celina,
the Company was required to make principal and interest payments, on a monthly basis, over a period of 180 months at an interest rate of
3.5% per annum.

In May 2011, the Company fully repaid $2.0 million of the outstanding principal amount of the long-term debt held by Pinnacle and Celina. The
early repayment of the debt did not result in any gain or loss on extinguishment.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, outstanding borrowings from Pinnacle were approximately $0 million and $2.6
million and outstanding borrowings from Celina were approximately $0 million and $0.2 million.

Convertible Debt Purchase Agreement

In September 2009, the Company entered into a convertible debt purchase agreement (�Convertible Debt�) for up to $10 million with certain
lenders whereby the Company issued convertible unsecured promissory notes totaling $4 million payable in two years at a non-compounded
annual stated and effective interest rate of 10%. In the event of an extension of the maturity date, the interest rate would change to LIBOR plus
7%, up to the lesser of (i) 15% per annum or (ii) the maximum amount legally permissible. The Convertible Debt was repayable at any time after
the six-month anniversary of the issuance date. In the event the Convertible Debt was repaid prior to the one-year anniversary of the issuance
date, the incremental interest would have amounted to 10% of such repayments. The holders of the notes had the option of exercising their
conversion rights prior to such repayments. The conversion rate was based on the sum of the unpaid principal and interest divided by $16 to
determine the number of common shares issuable upon conversion, and adjusted for anti-dilution effects (Note 20). Borrowings under the
Convertible Debt were subject to the non-occurrence of a material adverse change in the business, operations (financial or otherwise) of the
Company, or a material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any portion of the Company�s outstanding obligations. As of December 31,
2010, the Company was in compliance with this covenant.

The maturity date of the Convertible Debt could be extended by an additional year by (A) consent of the Company and lenders holding at least a
majority of the principal amount of the Convertible Debt, or (B) at the sole discretion of the Company.

In June 2011, the Company fully repaid $1.0 million of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Debt. The early repayment of the
debt did not result in any gain or loss on extinguishment. The remaining $3.0 million of outstanding principal and $0.5 million of accrued
interest was converted into 218,989 shares of the Company�s common stock in June 2011, reducing the outstanding principal amount to $0
million at September 30, 2011. The option to convert was considered substantive, and therefore no incremental charge was recorded upon
conversion of the debt.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 outstanding borrowings under the Convertible Debt were approximately $0 million and $4.0
million, respectively.

ALS Acquisition Earn Out Agreement

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 31



In connection with the ALS acquisition, the Company entered into an earn-out payment agreement to pay $1.9 million over a three-year period
commencing November 2009 at an interest rate of 5% per annum. Principal and interest was payable on a quarterly basis.

In May 2011, the Company fully repaid $0.8 million of the outstanding principal amount of the earn-out payment. The early repayment of the
debt did not result in any gain or loss on extinguishment.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the remaining earn-out payable to ALS was approximately $0 million and $1.0 million,
respectively.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases its office and datacenter facilities under noncancelable leases that expire at various times through 2015. The Company is
also responsible for certain real estate taxes, utilities and maintenance costs on its office facilities. Rent expense was approximately $2.9 million
and $2.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $8.3 million and $7.1 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Guarantees

The Company entered into an arrangement with a third-party customer to guarantee performance by the Company. The Company may provide a
corporate guarantee, irrevocable letter of credit, surety bond or any other form of guarantee acceptable to the third-party customer of up to $15
million. The corporate guarantee became effective in July 2010.

Sales and Use Tax

The Company accrues for sales and use taxes in certain states. The Company performed an analysis of its potential liability in states where it had
not previously remitted these taxes. Based on the results of the analysis, the Company established a reserve for estimated claims from states
where sales and use tax had not been remitted of $4.1 million and $3.4 million at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Indemnification

The Company enters into indemnification arrangements in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to these arrangements, the Company
indemnifies, holds harmless and agrees to reimburse the indemnified parties for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party, in
connection with any trade secret, copyright, patent or other intellectual property infringement claim by any third-party with respect to its
technology. The term of these indemnification agreements is generally perpetual any time after the execution of the agreement. The maximum
potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under these agreements is not determinable because it involves
claims that may be made against the Company in the future, but have not yet been made. The Company has not incurred costs to defend lawsuits
or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements.

The Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its directors and officers that may require the Company to indemnify its
directors and officers against liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service as directors or officers, other than liabilities arising
from willful misconduct of the individual.

Loss Contingencies

The Company is subject to the possibility of various loss contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business. Management considers the
likelihood of loss or impairment of an asset or the incurrence of a liability, as well as its ability to reasonably estimate the amount of loss, in
determining loss contingencies. An estimated loss contingency is accrued when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has
been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company regularly evaluates current information available to its
management to determine whether such accruals should be adjusted and whether new accruals are required.

In the normal course of business, the Company may incur penalties from customers related to power outages or other technical disruptions. As a
result of this potential exposure, the Company accrued a liability of $3.2 million and $0.7 million as of September 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively. Penalties are reflected as a reduction in revenue or as an increase to cost of revenue in the Company�s consolidated statements
of operations.

In December 2010 the Company became aware of a security breach in one of the legacy computer systems it acquired in an acquisition. This
breach could potentially result in an unauthorized acquisition and use of credit card data and could result in assessments or damages from claims
asserted by organizers or participants. The Company has performed an internal investigation to assess the potential exposure of the breach and
determined it to be insignificant; accordingly, no amounts have been accrued as of September 30, 2011 or December 31, 2010. To date the
Company has paid approximately $0.1 million in assessments associated with this breach.

13. Legal Proceedings
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From time to time, the Company is involved in disputes, litigation and other legal actions. The Company records a charge equal to at least the
minimum estimated liability for a loss contingency only when both of the following conditions are met: (i) information available prior to
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that an asset had been impaired or a liability had been incurred at the date of the
financial statements, and (ii) the range of loss can be reasonably estimated. The actual liability in any such matters may be materially different
from the Company�s estimates, which could result in the need to adjust the liability and record additional expenses. The Company has not
recorded an accrual for potential loss as of September 30, 2011 or December 31, 2010.
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14. Preferred Stock

Effective May 25, 2011, all shares of convertible preferred stock and redeemable convertible preferred stock were converted into 8,807,090 and
25,824,801 shares of common stock, respectively, in connection with the Company�s IPO as described in Note 1. After the completion of the IPO
in May 2011, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation and reduced the authorized number of shares of preferred stock to
100,000,000.

15. Stockholders� Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock

After the completion of the IPO in May 2011, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation and increased its authorized number of
shares of common stock to 1,000,000,000.

Holders of common stock are entitled to dividends if and when declared by the Board of Directors and after obtaining the majority consent of
preferred stockholders.

Each share of common stock has the right to one vote per share. Each restricted stock purchase right has the right to one vote per share and the
right to receive dividends or other distributions paid or made with respect to common shares, subject to restrictions for continued employment
service.

Common Stock Warrants

During 2006, in connection with a Master Service Agreement (�MSA�) with the United States Tennis Association (�USTA�), the Company issued
warrants to purchase 239,027 shares of the Company�s common stock at an exercise price of $9.28 per share. These warrants were exercisable
immediately after issuance and would expire in 10 years. In conjunction with the December 2010 renewal of the MSA, the Company extended
the exercise period of the warrants an additional 5 years. The total fair value of the warrants at the date of issuance and modification of $1.5
million was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: contractual life of ten to eleven years;
expected volatility between 52.6% - 82.1%; risk free interest rate between 3.0% - 4.9%; and a dividend yield of 0%. The warrants were net
exercised on the closing date of the Company�s IPO and the Company issued 91,148 shares of common stock to the USTA. The amortization of
the warrants was approximately $0.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $0.1 million and $0.2
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

In conjunction with the 2007 Loan and Security Agreement and amendments to the 2007 Loan and Security Agreement in April 2010 and
December 2010, the Company issued warrants to Gold Hill and Escalate to purchase 131,030 shares of common stock and 198,210 shares of
common stock, respectively, at an exercise price of $0.001 per share. The fair value of these warrants of $2.2 million was calculated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model at the various dates of issuance using the following assumptions: contractual life of seven years; expected
volatility between 51.4% - 71.0%; risk free rate between 2.7% - 4.5%; and a dividend yield of 0%. This estimated fair value, which represents a
debt discount, is accounted for as interest expense over the term of the Agreement. The warrants were net exercised on the closing date of the
Company�s IPO and the Company issued 131,021 and 198,196 shares of common stock to Gold Hill and Escalate, respectively. Interest expense
related to the amortization of the warrants was approximately $0.6 million and $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and $0.7 million and $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Included in the
interest expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 was $0.5 million incurred as a result of repayment of the outstanding
principal amount of the long-term debt under the Agreement with Gold Hill and Escalate (Note 11).

16. Stock Plans and Stock-Based Compensation

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In April 2011, the Company�s stockholders approved the 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �2011 ESPP Plan�), which became effective
upon the Company�s IPO. The 2011 ESPP Plan allows participating employees to contribute up to 20% of their earnings, up to a maximum of
$25,000 per annum, to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock at a price per share equal to the lower of (a) 85% of the fair market
value of a share of the Company�s common stock on the first date of the offering period, or (b) 85% of the fair market value of a share of the
Company�s common stock on the date of purchase. The Company�s compensation committee may specify offerings with durations of not more
than 27 months, and may specify shorter purchase periods within each offering. Each offering will have one or more purchase dates on which
shares of the Company�s common stock will be purchased for employees participating in the offering. As of September 30, 2011, there were
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1,122,000 shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2011 ESPP Plan and no shares had been issued under the 2011 ESPP Plan.
As the 2011 ESPP Plan is a compensatory plan as defined by the authoritative guidance for stock compensation, stock-based compensation
expense has been recorded in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2011.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan Activity

The Company�s first offering period of the 2011 ESPP began in August 2011. The weighted-average estimated fair value of employee stock
purchase plan shares to be issued in conjunction with the offering period occurring during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011
was $4.55 per share, using the Black-Scholes model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2011

Volatility 47.6% 47.6%
Expected dividend
yield �  �  
Risk-free rate 0.1% 0.1%
Expected term (in
years) 0.3 0.3

As of September 30, 2011, total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the
2011 ESPP was $0.1 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of less than six months.

Stock Option Plan

In January 2002, the Company adopted the 2002 Stock Option Plan (the �2002 Plan�) and retired the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the �1999 Plan�) and
assumed certain options under the 1999 Plan. Grants under the 2002 Plan may be incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options. The
2002 Plan is administered by the Company�s compensation committee, which has the authority to designate participants and determine the
number and type of awards to be granted, the time at which awards are exercisable, the method of payment and any other terms or conditions of
the awards. The vesting of these awards vary subject to the participant�s period of future service, or otherwise at the discretion of the
compensation committee. The majority of awards issued under the 2002 Plan vests over two to four years, and has a term of ten years. The
maximum number of shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the 2002 Plan was 15,687,998 as of December 31, 2010, plus the shares of
common stock subject to options pursuant to awards granted under the 1999 Plan forfeited after the adoption of the 2002 Plan. There were
150,435 shares available for grant under the 2002 Plan at December 31, 2010. Upon the Company�s IPO in May 2011, the Company�s ability to
grant awards under the 2002 Plan was terminated. As of September 30, 2011, options to purchase 12,179,309 shares of common stock were
outstanding under the 2002 Plan. The 2002 Plan will continue to govern the terms and conditions of the outstanding equity awards granted under
the 2002 Plan.

In April 2011, the Company�s stockholders approved the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2011 Plan�), which became effective upon the
Company�s IPO. The 2011 Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, restricted stock purchase rights,
restricted stock bonuses, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units, cash-based awards and other stock-based awards. The
2011 Plan is administered by the Company�s compensation committee, which has the authority to designate participants and determine the
number and type of awards to be granted, the time at which awards are exercisable, the method of payment and any other terms and conditions
of the awards. Stock options expire on terms as determined by the compensation committee, but not more than ten years after the date of grant.
Incentive stock options may be granted only to employees (including officers and directors who are employees). Nonqualified stock options,
restricted stock purchase rights, restricted stock bonuses, restricted stock units, performance units, cash-based awards and other stock-based
awards may be granted to employees and consultants. The maximum number of shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the 2011 Plan is
4,123,077, plus the shares of common stock subject to options or awards outstanding pursuant to the 2002 Plan that expire, terminate, cancel,
forfeit, or are repurchased after the adoption of the 2011 Plan. As of September 30, 2011, there were 3,660,136 shares available for grant under
the 2011 Plan. As of September 30, 2011, options to purchase 108,500 shares of common stock were outstanding under the 2011 Plan.

Early Exercise of Stock Options

The Company did not issue any shares of common stock during the three months ended September 30, 2011 or 2010, respectively for stock
options exercised prior to vesting. The Company issued 76,658 and 525,000 shares of common stock during the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively for stock options exercised prior to vesting. The unvested shares are subject to the Company�s
repurchase right at the lesser of the original exercise price or market price. The proceeds from the early exercise of stock options are recorded in
other long-term liabilities and reclassified to common stock as the shares vest and the Company�s repurchase rights lapse.
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There were 475,042 and 567,758 shares held by employees which were subject to repurchase for early exercise of stock options at an aggregate
purchase price of $0.9 million and $1.1 million at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Stock Option Activity

Stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 is as follows (in thousands, except share, per share and term data):

Stock Options

Number of
Shares

Underlying
Options

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 11,433,588 $ 2.18 7.26 $ 65,126

Granted 2,732,000 8.05
Exercised (1,742,134) 2.58
Cancelled or expired (135,645) 3.39

Outstanding at September 30, 2011 12,287,809 $ 3.42 7.30 $ 139,478

Options exercisable at September 30, 2011 12,180,350 $ 3.30 7.28 $ 139,478

Options vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2011 11,971,040 $ 3.35 7.23 $ 136,711

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the quoted closing market price of the Company�s common stock and the exercise
price of outstanding, in-the-money options. The Company�s market price of its common stock was $14.75 and $4.87 as of September 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was approximately $18.3 million and $0.2 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted was $6.51 and $1.05 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Total unrecognized compensation cost, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, related to nonvested stock options was approximately $18.3 million as
of September 30, 2011 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.2 years.

Valuation of Stock Option Awards

The following table presents the weighted-average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options granted in the periods presented:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Volatility 48.7-49.1% 50.1% 48.5-49.2% 50.1-51.8% 
Expected dividend yield �  �  �  �  
Risk-free rate 0.9-1.1% 1.3% 0.9-2.2% 1.3-2.2% 
Expected term (in years) 4.9 4.7 4.9 4.7
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Restricted Stock Activity

A summary of restricted stock activity during the nine months ended September 30, 2011, is presented as follows (in thousands, except share
and term data):

Restricted Stock
Number of

Shares

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term
Nonvested at December 31, 2010 78,500 0.17
Granted 402,127
Vested (78,500) 
Forfeited �  

Nonvested at September 30, 2011 402,127 3.92

During the nine months ended September 20, 2011, the Company granted 402,127 restricted stock units (�RSUs�). The RSUs vest annually over a
four-year period following the date of grant, subject to the participant�s continued service through the applicable vesting dates.

The Company measures the fair value of restricted awards at the closing stock price of the Company�s common stock on the date of grant, and
the fair value is recognized as expense over the requisite service period. The per unit weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stock
units granted was $16.65 and $0 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

At September 30, 2011, remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock was $5.4 million.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

The following table presents the effects of stock-based compensation related to stock-based awards to employees on the Company�s consolidated
statements of operations during the periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Cost of revenue $ 52 $ 25 $ 107 $ 79
Sales and marketing 277 134 1,040 390
Research and development 315 8 636 287
General and administrative 1,326 1,182 2,999 3,786

Total stock-based compensation $ 1,970 $ 1,349 $ 4,782 $ 4,542

The components of stock-based compensation expense were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Stock options $ 1,726 $ 1,026 $ 4,479 $ 3,865
RSUs 135 323 194 677
ESPP 109 �  109 �  

Total stock-based compensation $ 1,970 $ 1,349 $ 4,782 $ 4,542
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17. Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders

Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is presented in conformity with the two-class method required for participating
securities. Prior to the IPO, holders of Redeemable Convertible Preferred shares were each entitled to receive 8% per annum cumulative
dividends, payable prior and in preference to any dividends on any other shares of the Company�s capital stock.

Under the two-class method, basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
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The following tables present the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders (in thousands, except per
share data):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Net loss per share:
Net loss $ (1,432) $ (3,834) $ (6,845) $ (18,180) 
Less: accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock �  (7,055) (11,810) (20,828) 

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (1,432) $ (10,889) $ (18,655) $ (39,008) 

Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 53,701 7,228 29,993 7,050

Diluted 53,701 7,228 29,993 7,050

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders:
Basic $ (0.03) $ (1.51) $ (0.62) $ (5.53) 

Diluted $ (0.03) $ (1.51) $ (0.62) $ (5.53) 

Potentially dilutive securities not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because their effect would have been anti-dilutive for
the periods presented is as follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Options to purchase common stock and common stock
subject to repurchase 12,809,899 11,796,565 12,780,410 11,845,538
Restricted stock 144,241 133,962 65,862 171,789
Convertible Preferred �  8,807,092 4,645,498 8,807,092
Redeemable Convertible Preferred �  25,828,786 13,621,873 25,828,786
Common stock warrants 5,359 247,711 134,519 247,711
Common stock issuable upon conversion of debt �  268,835 155,409 256,438

12,959,499 47,082,951 31,403,571 47,157,354

18. Segment Information

The Company�s Chief Executive Officer who is considered to be the chief operating decision maker (�CODM�) reviews financial information
presented on a consolidated basis, accompanied by information about operating segments for purposes of making operating decisions and
assessing financial performance. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the CODM in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The Company determined its operating segments to be technology services, which derives substantially all of its revenue from the sale of direct
selling services through a hosted software solution, and marketing services, which derives substantially all of its revenue from the delivery of
advertising and content media.

The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on net revenues and operating income before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and stock-based compensation expense.
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The Company does not allocate most of its assets, as well as its depreciation and amortization expense, stock-based compensation expense,
interest income, interest expense and income tax expense by segment. Accordingly, the Company does not report such information.
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Summarized information by segment was as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Net revenue by segment:
Technology $ 76,341 $ 62,400 $ 225,002 $ 188,504
Marketing services 13,287 10,693 36,343 29,473

Total net revenue $ 89,628 $ 73,093 $ 261,345 $ 217,977

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Segment operating income before depreciation,
amortization, stock-based compensation expense and
unallocated corporate costs:
Technology $ 17,034 $ 14,295 $ 51,050 $ 40,874
Marketing services 5,710 3,558 15,333 9,579

Total segment operating income before depreciation,
amortization, stock-based compensation expense and
unallocated corporate costs 22,744 17,853 66,833 50,543
Depreciation and amortization (11,146) (10,230) (32,654) (29,287) 
Stock-based compensation expense (1,970) (1,349) (4,782) (4,542) 
Unallocated corporate costs (10,040) (8,524) (30,703) (28,197) 

Loss from operations $ (412) $ (2,250) $ (1,756) $ (11,573) 

The Company allocates its net revenue to geographic regions based on the customer�s location. The following tables set forth net revenue and
long-lived assets by geographic region (in thousands):

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Net revenue:
North America $ 86,819 $ 72,500 $ 253,587 $ 214,129
Europe and other 2,809 593 7,758 3,848

Total net revenue $ 89,628 $ 73,093 $ 261,345 $ 217,977

September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

Assets:
North America $ 528,787 $ 388,729
Europe and other 2,826 1,819

Total assets $ 531,613 $ 390,548

Long-lived assets:
North America $ 319,472 $ 315,270
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Europe and other 910 560

Total long-lived assets $ 320,382 $ 315,830

19. Income Taxes

The effective tax rate of (57.2)% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 differs from the statutory rate primarily due to state taxes,
foreign taxes, nondeductible stock option expenses, the increase in the deferred tax liability from the amortization of tax deductible goodwill,
and the change in the valuation allowance.

The Company reduces the deferred tax asset resulting from future tax benefits by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of the available
evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of these deferred taxes will not be realized. The timing of the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities associated with tax deductible goodwill is not certain and thus not available to assure the realization of deferred tax assets. Similarly,
state deferred tax liabilities in excess of state deferred tax assets are not available to ensure the realization of federal deferred tax assets. After
consideration of these limitations associated with deferred tax liabilities, the
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Company has deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities for the periods presented. As the Company has no history of generating
book income, the ultimate future realization of these excess deferred tax assets is not more likely than not and thus subject to a valuation
allowance. Accordingly, the Company has established a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

The Company is subject to the accounting guidance for uncertain income tax positions. Pursuant to the guidance, income tax positions must
meet a more likely than not recognition threshold in order to be recognized. Tax benefits are then measured using a cumulative benefit approach
whereby the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority is
recorded. In accordance with this guidance, the Company recorded a liability of $0.3 million for uncertain tax positions as of September 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The Company does not expect any material changes in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits
during the next twelve months.

The Company�s policy for recording interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions is to record such items as a component of income tax
expense. Accrued interest and penalties of $0.1 million were recorded as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

The Company is subject to taxation in the United States and various states and foreign jurisdictions. Effectively, all of the Company�s historical
tax filings are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and various state and foreign jurisdictions due to the generation of net
operating loss carryforwards.

Certain of the Company�s subsidiaries are currently under tax audit. The Company anticipates that few of its open and active audits may be
resolved within the next 12 months. The Company is unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate as to when or if cash settlements with taxing
authorities may occur. Although audit outcomes and the timing of audit payments are subject to uncertainty, the Company does not anticipate
that the resolution of these tax matters or any events related thereto will result in a material adverse change to its consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

20. Related Party Transactions

ESPN Online Investments, Inc. (�ESPN�) is a significant common stockholder in the Company. The Company also sells its services to ESPN and
its affiliates. The Company earned revenues from ESPN and its affiliates of $2.0 million and $1.2 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $6.3 million and $3.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

ESPN is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company (�Disney�). The Company entered into an online registration services
agreement with Disney to provide online advertising. The Company earned revenues from Disney of $0.4 million and $0.3 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $1.2 million and $0.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

In September 2009, the Company entered into a convertible debt note purchase agreement totaling $4.0 million with its Chief Executive Officer
and ABS Ventures IX, L.P. (�ABS�). The Company used a portion of the proceeds from the IPO to repay $1.0 million of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Debt. The remaining $3.0 million of outstanding principal and $0.5 million of accrued interest was converted into
218,989 shares of the Company�s common stock in June 2011. ABS is a also a stockholder in the Company through its investments in the Series
C, D and E Redeemable Convertible Preferred, which was converted into shares of common stock upon the IPO.

In August 2006, the Company entered into a Master Services Agreement and certain other related agreements with the USTA as amended in
December 2010. A member of the Company�s Board of Directors is the managing director for recreational tennis at the USTA. Pursuant to the
terms of these agreements, the USTA purchases certain software services from the Company. In addition, the USTA held a warrant to purchase
the Company�s common stock, which was net exercised on the closing date of the Company�s IPO. The Company issued 91,148 shares of
common stock to the USTA upon the net exercise of the warrant in May 2011. Net revenue from the USTA and its affiliates was approximately
$1.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $4.0 million and $3.5 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

21. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined contribution plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (�401(k) Plan�) covering all full-time employees
who meet certain eligibility requirements. Eligible employees may defer up to 4% of their pre-tax compensation, up to the annual maximum
allowed by the Internal Revenue Service. Under the 401(k) Plan, the Company may, but is not obligated to, match a portion of the employee
contributions up to a defined maximum. The Company made matching contributions of $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the three months ended
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September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $0.6 million and $0.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
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22. Subsequent Events

Acquisition of ServiceU

On October 3, 2011, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common shares of ServiceU, a provider of web-based solutions for giving,
event registration, ticketing, calendaring and resource management in exchange for $11.1 million in cash. The acquisition enables the Company
to strengthen its position as a technology leader and broaden its customer base. Management is currently evaluating the purchase price allocation
for this transaction.

Acquisition of RTP, LLC

On November 9, 2011, the Company completed the purchase of all of the outstanding shares of RTP, LLC (�RTP�), a provider of integrated resort
software and solutions in exchange for $21.5 million in cash. The acquisition enables the Company to broaden its existing product capabilities
and its customer base. Management is currently evaluating the purchase price allocation for this transaction.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in our other public filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�).

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains �forward-looking statements� that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that, if
they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. The statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Forward-looking statements are often identified by the use of words such as, but not limited to, �anticipate,� �believe,� �can,�
�continue,� �could,� �estimate,� �expect,� �intend,� �may,� �will,� �plan,� �project,� �seek,� �should,� �target,� �will,� �would,� and
similar expressions or variations intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements are based on the beliefs and assumptions of
our management based on information currently available to management. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties
and other important factors that could cause actual results and the timing of certain events to differ materially from future results expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those
identified in �Part II �Item 1A. Risk Factors� below, and those discussed in our other public filings with the SEC. Furthermore, such
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements.

Overview

We are the leading provider of organization-based cloud computing applications serving a wide range of customer groups including business
events, community activities, outdoors and sports. We provide applications that form an online network connecting a fragmented and diverse
group of activity and event organizers with a large base of potential participants. Our proprietary technology platform transforms the way
organizers manage their activities and events by automating online registrations and streamlining other critical management functions, while also
driving consumer participation to their events.

We power a broad range of activities, such as reserving a campsite or tee time, signing up for a marathon or sports league, purchasing a fishing
or hunting license, or participating in a community event or corporate conference. From the introduction of our platform in 1999, we have
experienced significant growth and in 2010, we had over 47,000 customer organizations that drove over 70 million annual consumer
registrations. Based on the results of an online survey we commissioned through Survey.com, we believe the organizations we target produce or
organize activities and events for the majority of U.S. households.

Our business benefits from a powerful network effect. As more organizations use our platform, we increase the breadth and depth of activities
and events offered through our platform. This more comprehensive offering of activities attracts more participants. As we attract more
participants, we are able to drive increased demand for our customers� activities, thus increasing registrations and revenue for both organizers and
us. This revenue growth enables us to develop enhanced functionality and services through ActiveWorks and our websites, further increasing
participant engagement and attracting new organizers. In this way, we build increasing value for both organizations and participants.

We serve a wide range of customers including community and sports organizations, large corporations, small and medium-sized businesses,
educational institutions, federal and state government agencies, non-profit organizations and other similar entities. We primarily generate
revenue from technology fees paid by participants who register for our customers� activities through our cloud computing applications. During
the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we generated revenue of $261.3 million, as compared to $218.0 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2010, an increase of 20%.

Our technology revenue was 85% of our total revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 86% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011. Net registration revenue was 80% of our technology revenue for the three months and 81% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011. During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we processed approximately 63 million consumer registrations.
Licensed software, maintenance, hosting and implementation revenue was 20% of our technology revenue for the three months and 19% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2011. Our marketing services revenue was 15% of our total revenue for the three months ended September 30,
2011 and 14% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

Key Business Metrics

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 49



Net Registration Revenue. We calculate our net registration revenue by summing the technology fees generated by our registrations in a given
period.
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Registrations. We define a registration as when a participant registers one or more people for an event being held by an organization who is
using our technology to register that participant. We determine that a registration has taken place when a participant registers one or more people
for an activity or an event being held by one of our customers.

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

(In thousands)
Net registration revenue $ 60,893 $ 52,074 17% $ 182,067 $ 158,315 15%
Registrations (1) 23,513 20,474 15% 62,969 54,859 15%
Net registration revenue per registration $ 2.59 $ 2.54 2% $ 2.89 $ 2.89 0%

(1) In the third quarter of 2011, we identified previously unreported registration data during the first and second quarters of 2011. As a result,
we underreported the number of registrations for these prior periods. We identified that the underreporting resulted primarily from the
prior lack of the reporting systems of two new state customers. The underreporting has no impact on our prior financial statements, nor do
we believe the underreporting has a material adverse effect on our business. The following table reconciles the �as reported� registration
numbers with the �as corrected� registration numbers (in thousands):

Prior Period As Reported As Corrected
First Quarter 13,931 14,859
Second Quarter 22,926 24,597

Net Registration Revenue and Registrations

Registrations increased 3.0 million or 15% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended September 30,
2010 and 8.1 million, or 15%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010, mainly
due to registrations from two new state customers. The average revenue per registration increased 2% for the three months, and remained flat for
the nine months.

Basis of Presentation

General

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Active Network, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany
balances have been eliminated.

Acquisitions that have been accounted for as purchase transactions are included in the consolidated results from their date of purchase.

Revenue

We report our revenue in two segments:

� Technology

� Marketing services
The technology revenue segment is primarily composed of net registration revenue, which is made up of the technology fee we charge a
participant when they register for one of our organization�s events. The technology fee is recognized as revenue net of the organization
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registration fee which is collected on behalf of our customer and then remitted back to the organization typically on a two week basis. Net
registration revenue is recognized when services are provided, net of estimated rebates and other chargebacks. Technology revenue also includes
software licensing, installation, training, maintenance and hosting subscriptions.

The marketing services revenue segment includes online services, field marketing services and membership programs. Registrations lead
participants to our network of websites and create opportunities for us to sell our online commerce and other marketing services to participants.
Our network of websites enables like-minded consumers to engage in our online communities.
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Costs and Expenses

Cost of Revenue. Our cost of revenue consists of credit card processing fees for registrations, payroll and related costs including allocated
facilities costs, stock-based compensation for employees associated with registration, subscription or software implementation, customer support
and onsite event support including travel costs. Costs also include expenses related to our call center operations, amortization of capitalized
software development costs and certain acquired intangibles including acquired technology, customer supply costs, inventory costs and internet
hosting costs.

Sales and Marketing. Our sales and marketing costs are primarily salaries, benefits, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation and
allocated facilities costs for our sales and marketing employees. Costs also include expenses for travel, trade shows and other promotional and
marketing activities including direct and online marketing.

Research and Development. Our research and development costs are primarily salaries, benefits, incentive compensation, stock-based
compensation and allocated facilities costs for employees and contractors engaged in the development and ongoing maintenance of our products
and services.

General and Administrative. Our general and administrative costs are primarily salaries, benefits, incentive compensation, stock-based
compensation and allocated facilities costs for employees engaged in support activities including executive, finance, accounting, human
resources, legal and internal information technology support. Also included are professional fees and contractor costs for legal and accounting
services. Software expenses and travel costs for support employees, taxes, fees and licenses are also included.

Amortization of Intangibles. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized using a combination of straight-line and accelerated methods based
on the expected cash flows from the asset over their estimated useful lives. This includes assets recorded in conjunction with certain
acquisitions.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net consists primarily of the interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents,
interest paid on our debt, foreign exchange gains and losses and other one-time gains and losses.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes consists of federal and state income taxes in the United States and income taxes in
certain foreign jurisdictions.

Critical Accounting Policies

In presenting our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepting accounting principles, or GAAP, we are required
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures.

Some of the estimates and assumptions we are required to make relate to matters that are inherently uncertain as they pertain to future events.
We base these estimates and assumptions on historical experience or on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable and appropriate
under the circumstances. On an ongoing basis, we reconsider and evaluate our estimates and assumptions. Our future estimates may change if
the underlying assumptions change. Actual results may differ significantly from these estimates.

We believe that the critical accounting policies listed below involve our more significant judgments, assumptions and estimates and, therefore,
could have the greatest potential impact on our consolidated financial statements. There have been no material changes to our critical accounting
policies, estimates and judgments subsequent to March 31, 2011.

� Revenue recognition

� Allowance for doubtful accounts

� Software development costs
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� Business combinations

� Impairment of goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets and long-lived assets

� Income taxes

� Stock-based compensation
For further information on our critical and other significant accounting policies, see Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements and Note 2
to our consolidated financial statements included in our final prospectus, dated May 25, 2011, related to our IPO.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods presented and as a percentage of our revenue for those periods. The
period-to-period comparison of financial results is not necessarily indicative of future results.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Net revenue:
Technology revenue $ 76,341 $ 62,400 $ 225,002 $ 188,504
Marketing services revenue 13,287 10,693 36,343 29,473

Total net revenue 89,628 73,093 261,345 217,977
Cost of net revenue 39,890 31,124 114,227 93,244

Gross profit 49,738 41,969 147,118 124,733
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 17,116 15,041 52,970 44,799
Research and development 17,628 15,048 50,181 46,400
General and administrative 11,737 10,101 34,633 32,958
Amortization of intangibles 3,669 4,029 11,090 12,149

Total operating expenses 50,150 44,219 148,874 136,306

Loss from operations (412) (2,250) (1,756) (11,573) 
Interest income 32 43 91 113
Interest expense (109) (1,325) (2,799) (4,089) 
Other income (expense), net (33) 762 109 141

Loss before income taxes (522) (2,770) (4,355) (15,408) 
Income tax provision 910 1,064 2,490 2,772

Net loss (1,432) (3,834) (6,845) (18,180) 
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock �  (7,055) (11,810) (20,828) 

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (1,432) $ (10,889) $ (18,655) $ (39,008) 

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
(As of percentage of net revenue)

Cost of net revenue 45% 43% 44% 43% 
Gross profit 55 57 56 57
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 19 21 20 21
Research and development 20 21 19 21
General and administrative 13 14 13 15
Amortization of intangibles 4 6 4 6

Total operating expenses 56 60 57 63
Loss from operations (0) (3) (1) (5) 
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Interest income 0 0 0 0
Interest expense (0) (2) (1) (2) 
Other income (expense), net (0) 1 0 0

Loss before income taxes (1) (4) (2) (7) 
Income tax provision 1 1 1 1

Net loss (2%) (5%) (3%) (8%) 
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Three Months and Nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Net Revenue

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(In thousands) (In thousands)

Net revenue:
Technology revenue $ 76,341 $ 62,400 22% $ 225,002 $ 188,504 19%
Marketing services revenue 13,287 10,693 24% 36,343 29,473 23%

Net revenue $ 89,628 $ 73,093 23% $ 261,345 $ 217,977 20%

Total revenue increased $16.5 million, or 23%, for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2010 and $43.4 million, or 20%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2010 as discussed below.

Technology revenue. Net registration revenue increased $8.8 million or 17% for the three months and $23.8 million or 15% for the nine months.
The increase was driven by growth in each of our four main customer groups led by growth in business events and growth related to new large
state customers in outdoors. Software revenue increased $5.1 million or 50% for the three months and $12.7 million or 42% for the nine months,
primarily as a result of higher hosting and implementation revenue. In total, technology revenue increased $13.9 million or 22% for the three
months and $36.5 million or 19% for the nine months.

Marketing services revenue. Revenue increased $2.6 million, or 24% for the three months and $6.9 million or 23% for the nine months, resulting
mainly from growth in online advertising and membership programs.

Costs and Expenses

Employee related expenses. Headcount and its related expenses make up a significant portion of our total expenses. We define employee related
expenses as salaries, fringe benefits, facilities costs, employee travel, commissions, bonuses and other employee expenses.

Cost of Net Revenue

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(Dollars in thousands)

Cost of net revenue $ 39,890 $ 31,124 28% $ 114,227 $ 93,244 23%
Headcount (at period end) 1,283 1,171 10%
Cost of net revenue increased $8.8 million or 28% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2010 and $21.0 million or 23% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2010. The increase in cost of net revenue was due in part to increases in credit card fees of $2.0 million for the three months and $5.9 million for
the nine months, directly attributable to the increases in net registration revenue. Headcount increased 10% with the addition of call center,
information technology and implementation support employees to support the revenue growth, leading to higher employee related costs of $1.8
million for the three months and $3.9 million for the nine months. Depreciation for fixed assets and amortization of software that was capitalized
in earlier periods increased $1.6 million for the three months and $6.0 million for the nine months. Both the three months and the nine months
include an expense of $0.8 million to record a contingency related to a state contract implementation. Other cost of goods sold increased $2.6
million for the three months and $4.4 million for the nine months to support the revenue growth.
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Sales and Marketing

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(Dollars in thousands)

Sales and marketing $ 17,116 $ 15,041 14% $ 52,970 $ 44,799 18%
Headcount (at period end) 500 460 9%
Sales and marketing expense increased $2.1 million or 14% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2010 and $8.2 million or 18% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2010. The increase was primarily due to increases in employee related costs of $2.0 million for the three months and $6.5 million for the nine
months, which resulted from a 9% increase in headcount as we invested in our sales and marketing staff for future business growth. Marketing
expenses also increased $0.2 million for the three months and $1.6 million for the nine months as we increased our marketing and trade show
spending mainly due to large trade shows in the first six months of the year.

Research and Development

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(Dollars in thousands)

Research and development $ 17,628 $ 15,048 17% $ 50,181 $ 46,400 8%
Headcount (at period end) 934 815 15%
Research and development expense increased $2.6 million or 17% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months
ended September 30, 2010 and $3.8 million or 8% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2010. The increase was primarily due to increases in employee related costs of $3.3 million for the three months and $7.4 million
for the nine months resulting from a 15% increase in headcount driven by our continued development of ActiveWorks and implementations for
new large state customers. The increase in employee related costs was partially offset by additional capitalized software of $0.7 million for the
three months and $1.7 million for the nine months, and declines in contractor expenses of $0.1 million for the three months and $1.3 million for
the nine months.

General and Administrative

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(Dollars in thousands)

General and administrative $ 11,737 $ 10,101 16% $ 34,633 $ 32,958 5%
Headcount (at period end) 269 216 25%
General and administrative expense increased $1.6 million or 16% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months
ended September 30, 2010 and increased $1.7 million or 5% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2010. Employee related expenses increased $1.3 million for the three months and $1.2 million for the nine months as a result of
higher salaries and benefits costs resulting from a 25% increase in headcount to allow us to support the business, offset by a change in our
annual incentive plan accrual. For the three months, other expenses to support the business increased $0.3 million. For the nine months, other
expenses including software increased $1.6 million, offset by declines in contractor expenses of $0.9 million, stock-based compensation
expenses of $0.8 million and an expense of $0.6 million to record a contingency from a prior period acquisition.
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Amortization of Intangibles

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(In thousands)

Amortization of intangibles $ 3,669 $ 4,029 (9%) $ 11,090 $ 12,149 (9%) 
Amortization of intangibles decreased $0.4 million or 9% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended
September 30, 2010 and $1.1 million or 9% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2010. Intangibles are amortized over their expected life. Amortization expense on acquisitions completed prior to 2009 decreased as useful lives
on certain intangibles were met. This was slightly offset by higher amortization expense on acquisitions completed since 2009.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(In thousands)

Interest income $ 32 $ 43 (26%) $ 91 $ 113 (19%) 
Interest expense (109) (1,325) (92%) (2,799) (4,089) (32%) 
Other income (expense), net (33) 762 104% 109 141 23%

Interest and other income (expense), net $ (110) $ (520) (79%) $ (2,599) $ (3,835) (32%) 

Interest income decreased 26% for the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2010 and
decreased 19% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2010 due to our transition to
bank Earnings Credit Rate, which offsets bank fees with interest income resulting in lower interest income.

Interest expense decreased 92% to $0.1 million for the three months and decreased 32% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011
compared to the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2010 due to a lower average debt balance. We paid all of our debt in full
subsequent to our public offering in May 2011, and the remaining interest expense is related to capital lease obligations.

Other income (expense), net was less than ($0.1) million for the three months ended September 30, 2011, and approximately $0.1 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2011. The amounts in both 2011 and 2010 are mainly related to gains or losses on foreign exchange.

Income Taxes

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2011 2010
%

Change 2011 2010
%

Change
(In thousands)

Income tax expense $ 910 $ 1,064 (14%) $ 2,490 $ 2,772 (10%) 
Income tax expense decreased $0.2 million for the three months and $0.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2010. The provision for each period is primarily the result of increases in our deferred tax liabilities
from the amortization of tax deductible goodwill.

The effective tax rate of (57.2)% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 differs from the statutory rate primarily due to state taxes,
foreign taxes, nondeductible stock option expenses, the increase in the deferred tax liability from the amortization of tax deductible goodwill,
and the change in the valuation allowance.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010
(in thousands)

Purchases of property and equipment $ (8,991) $ (11,186) 
Software development costs (13,898) (12,169) 
Depreciation and amortization 32,654 29,287
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net 27,871 22,217
Repayment of long-term obligations (41,628) (6,177) 
Net proceeds from initial public offering 114,700 �  
Net cash provided by operating activities 61,605 40,530
Net cash used in investing activities (27,596) (24,442) 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 73,924 (5,581) 

As of September 30, 2011, we had cash and cash equivalents of $139.0 million and restricted cash of $5.0 million. We did not have any
short-term or long-term investments. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market accounts. Restricted cash consists of
interest-bearing accounts used to fulfill the requirements of our debt agreement.

We have a $12.0 million line of credit to fund working capital under which we had no amounts drawn down as of September 30, 2011. This line
of credit expires in August 2012.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents together with cash flows from our operating activities and the net proceeds from our
common stock offering in May 2011 will be sufficient to fund our operations for at least the next 12 months.

Operating Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, operating activities provided $61.6 million in cash, taking into account a net loss of $6.8
million, plus $32.7 million in depreciation and amortization expense, $4.8 million in stock-based compensation, a $27.9 million net change in
operating assets and liabilities and $3.0 million increase in other items. Net change in operating assets and liabilities included $35.5 million from
an increase in registration fees payable resulting from an increase in registrations, $18.1 million from an increase in deferred revenue resulting
from growth in the business, offset by a $27.6 million increase in accounts receivable, resulting from an increase in registrations and growth in
the business, and $1.9 million from increases in other items.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was $27.6 million, resulting primarily from $13.9 million for
capitalized software development costs, cash used of $9.0 million in capital expenditures, and $4.1 million of net cash paid for the acquisitions,
including the acquisition of Fellowship Technologies, Inc. in February 2011 and other acquisitions made during the nine months ended
September 30, 2011.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was $73.9 million, resulting primarily from $114.7
million net proceeds from our initial public offering in May 2011, plus $3.1 million cash received from the exercise of stock options, offset by
$41.6 million to repay long-term obligations, and $2.2 million for payments on capital lease obligations.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2011, we did not have any off balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations
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Our contractual obligations relate primarily to borrowings under our credit facility, acquisition-related notes payable, operating leases and
purchase obligations. There have been no significant changes in our contractual obligations during the third quarter except as those discussed in
Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are exposed to market risks in the ordinary course of our business. These risks primarily include interest rate fluctuations, foreign exchange
risk and inflation.

Interest Rate Fluctuations

Our investments include cash and cash equivalents, which consists of cash and money market accounts. The primary objective of our investment
activities is to preserve principal while maximizing income without significantly increasing risk. We do not enter into investments for trading or
speculative purposes. Our investments are exposed to market risk due to a fluctuation in interest rates, which may affect our interest income and
the fair market value of our investments. Due to the short-term nature of our investment portfolio, we do not believe an immediate 10% increase
in interest rates would have a material effect on the fair market value of our portfolio, and therefore we do not expect our operating results or
cash flows to be materially affected to any degree by a sudden change in market interest rates.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We have foreign currency risks related to our revenue and operating expenses denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, principally
the Canadian dollar and the British pound sterling. We do not believe movements in the foreign currencies in which we transact will
significantly affect future net earnings. Foreign currency risk can be quantified by estimating the change in cash flows resulting from a
hypothetical 1% adverse change in foreign exchange rates. We believe such a change would not have a material impact on our results of
operations.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. If our costs were to
become subject to significant inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset such higher costs through price increases. Our inability or
failure to do so could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our �disclosure controls and procedures,� as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on
this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives as specified above. In
designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how
well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures
are met. Additionally, the design of a control system must reflect that there are resource constraints, thus, in designing disclosure controls and
procedures, our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure
controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the
probability of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future
conditions.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are from time to time subject to various claims and legal actions during the ordinary course of our business. We believe that there are
currently no claims or legal actions that would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial
condition. In May 2010, we filed a lawsuit against Electronic Arts Inc. d/b/a EA Sports, in the U.S. District Court, Southern District of
California, alleging that the �EA SPORTS Active� and �EA SPORTS Active More Workouts� fitness games and an associated website violated our
trademark rights. EA Sports filed a counter-claim seeking to invalidate our U.S. trademark registrations for �ACTIVE,� �ACTIVE.COM� and �THE
ACTIVE NETWORK.� We filed a preliminary injunction, which was denied in August 2010. In May 2011, we entered into a settlement
agreement with EA Sports and the parties filed a joint stipulation of dismissal of the action without prejudice. Concurrently with the filing of the
joint stipulation, the parties filed a joint motion requesting the court to vacate the order denying the preliminary injunction on the condition that
immediately upon the filing of any future legal proceedings between the parties, the preliminary injunction order shall be reinstated. We do not
believe the terms of the settlement will have a material adverse effect on our business. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse
impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risks and all other information
contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including our consolidated financial statements and the related notes, before investing in our
common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are
unaware of, or that we currently believe are not material, also may become important factors that affect us. If any of the following risks
materialize, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially harmed. In that case, the trading price of our
common stock could decline, and you may lose some or all of your investment.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have a history of significant net losses, and we may not be able to achieve profitability on an annual basis or maintain profitability
on a quarterly basis.

We have incurred fiscal year net losses since our inception in 1998. Our net losses were approximately $6.8 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, $27.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, $37.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 and $49.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. At September 30, 2011, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $266.8 million. We plan
to increase our operating expenses in the future as we continue to develop additional functionality and features for our applications, continue to
transition our customers to ActiveWorks, make additional acquisitions, increase our sales and marketing activities, expand outside of North
America and enhance our customer service and call center capabilities. While we achieved net income for the three month period ended
September 30, 2011, if our revenue grows at a slower rate than we anticipate, or if our operating expenses increase unexpectedly, we may not be
able to achieve profitability on an annual basis or maintain profitability on a quarterly basis.

Our limited operating history, new and unproven business model and rapidly evolving market make it difficult to evaluate our future
prospects and increase the risk that we will not be successful.

We launched our application services in 1999, and we have made a number of changes to our operations, technology platform and online
communities since that time. As a result, we have a limited operating history with our current business upon which to predict our future
operating results. In addition, the business of providing cloud computing applications to activity and event organizers and building and
supporting online communities for activity and event participants is relatively new and subject to rapid change. You must consider our business
and prospects in light of the risks and difficulties we will continue to encounter as a company with a new and unproven business model and
operating in a new and rapidly evolving market. These risks and difficulties include our ability to, among other things:

� attract new customers;
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� deepen our relationships with our existing customers;

� continue to transition our existing customers to ActiveWorks;

� continue to earn the trust of organizers and participants with respect to the processing, storage and use of their confidential
information and personal data in compliance with our own high standards of care and applicable governmental and other legal
obligations related to privacy and data protection;

� develop a scalable, high performance technology infrastructure that can securely, efficiently and reliably handle increased usage
globally;
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� continue to manage and successfully integrate acquired businesses, applications and technologies;

� successfully compete with other companies that engage in the activity and event registration and management market;

� continue to build and support online communities and applications for activity and event participants;

� successfully introduce and deploy new features and functionality for our technology platform;

� increase revenue from our applications, websites and online communities;

� avoid interruptions or disruptions in our service;

� avoid problems with the functionality of our applications;

� continue to hire, integrate and retain highly skilled team members who embrace our values and culture; and

� successfully expand our business outside of North America.
We may not be able to address these risks and difficulties or others that we may encounter, including those described elsewhere in this risk
factors section. Our failure to adequately address risks and difficulties as we encounter them could cause our reputation to suffer and harm our
business. We base our current and future expense levels on our management�s estimates of the size of our market and the number of potential
customers and registrations, operating forecasts and estimates of future revenue. However, our revenue and operating results are difficult to
forecast due to the uncertainty of our market and our ability to increase our customer base and the number of participants who elect to register
for activities using our applications. In addition, certain of our expenses are fixed, and we may be unable to adjust our spending in a timely
manner to compensate for any unexpected shortfall in revenue. As a result, we may make errors in predicting our revenue and expenses, which
would harm our business and financial condition.

Our growth rate over the past few years may not be sustainable. If we fail to maintain an adequate growth rate, our business will be
adversely affected and we may not achieve or maintain profitability.

Our revenue has grown rapidly over the past few years, increasing from $173.2 million in 2008 to $242.9 million in 2009 and to $279.6 million
in 2010, representing a compound annual growth rate over this period of 27%. We may not be able to sustain this level of growth in future
periods, and you should not rely on the revenue growth of any prior quarterly or annual period as an indication of our future performance.
Further, a significant portion of our revenue growth in fiscal year 2009 resulted from acquisitions, and not organic growth. We may not complete
acquisitions in the future that increase our revenue at the same rate as in prior periods. The identification of suitable acquisition candidates can
be difficult, time-consuming and costly, and we may not be able to successfully complete the acquisitions we do identify. If we are unable to
maintain an adequate rate of growth, our business will be adversely affected and we may not achieve or maintain profitability.

If we fail to effectively manage our growth, our business and operating results could be harmed.

The substantial growth in our business over the past few years has placed, and may continue to place, significant demands on our management,
our operating infrastructure and our internal controls and procedures. As our operations grow in size and complexity, we will need to improve
and upgrade our operating systems and infrastructure to offer an increasing number of organizers and participants enhanced applications,
features, functionality and support. In addition, we will be required to strengthen our internal controls and our risk management policies and
procedures. The expansion of our operating systems and infrastructure and the strengthening of our controls, policies and procedures will require
us to commit substantial financial, operational and technical resources in advance of an increase in the volume of our business, with no
assurance that our business will actually increase. Continued growth could also strain our ability to maintain reliable service levels for organizers
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and participants, as well as to recruit, train and retain highly skilled personnel. If we fail to effectively manage our growth, our business and
operating results could be harmed.

Acquisitions could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value, strain our resources and impair our
operating results, financial conditions and prospects.

Acquisitions have been an important part of our growth to date. We have completed a significant number of acquisitions over the past few years.
We intend to continue to seek to acquire and invest in businesses, applications and technologies that we believe could complement or expand our
business, augment our market coverage, enhance our technology platform, provide us with valuable customer contacts or otherwise offer growth
opportunities.

Acquisitions and investments involve numerous risks and difficulties, including:

� difficulties in integrating operations, technologies, accounting functions and personnel;

� difficulties in supporting and transitioning customers of our acquired companies to our technology platform;

� difficulties in maintaining the security and reliability of acquired applications;

� delays in strengthening internal controls and risk management policies and procedures;
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� diversion of financial and management resources from existing operations;

� potential loss of key employees;

� inability to generate sufficient revenue to offset acquisition or investment costs;

� assumption of unknown liabilities and claims;

� potential disputes and litigation;

� potential diminishment in the value of any acquired brands; and

� potential write-offs of acquired assets.
Acquisitions also frequently result in recording of goodwill and other intangible assets, which are subject to potential impairments in the future
that could harm our operating results. In addition, if we finance acquisitions by issuing convertible debt or equity securities, our existing
stockholders may be diluted. Such dilution could adversely affect the market price of our stock. Moreover, if we are unable to identify suitable
future acquisition candidates, reach agreement with these parties or obtain the financing needed to complete such acquisitions, we could lose
market share to competitors who are able to complete such acquisitions. This loss of market share could negatively impact our business, revenue
and future growth. If we fail to achieve the anticipated benefits of any acquisitions we have completed or may complete in the future, our
business, operating results, financial condition and prospects may be impaired.

Any failure to compete successfully against current or future competitors would materially adversely affect our business and prospects.

The market for technology applications for activity and event organizers is fragmented, competitive and rapidly evolving. Our primary
competition comes from traditional registration processing methods used by activity and event organizers, such as paper-based registrations
submitted by mail or in person or reservations submitted by telephone. We also face competition from:

� custom-developed applications created by an organizer�s technical staff or an outside custom service provider;

� companies that offer generalized functional software that have features and functionality that organizers can use to register
participants and manage their activities, such as content or contact management software programs, e-commerce solutions, enterprise
resource planning software other products having separate software modules; and

� companies that offer organizers integrated hosted software solutions in one or more verticals within the activities and events market.
Our competitors may announce new products, services or enhancements that better address changing industry standards or the needs of
organizers and participants. In addition, competitors and potential competitors may enter into business combinations or alliances that strengthen
their competitive positions. For example, companies who we do not consider to be significant competitors could acquire one or more of the
various companies in our fragmented industry and, over a short period of time, become a significant competitor in the markets we service. If any
of these competitors were to aggressively price their competing services in our market, we may be required to reduce our prices, which could
adversely affect our operating results and financial condition. In addition, it may be difficult to displace a competitor once they have established
a relationship with an organizer.
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We expect to encounter new and evolving competition as the market becomes aware of the advantages of cloud computing applications for
activity and event organizers. For example, social networking companies with a large number of online users could develop competing
applications or partner with third parties to do so. Future or existing competitors may introduce different pricing models, and offer users
applications at minimal or no cost. In addition, larger, better capitalized companies with greater operational, strategic, financial, personnel,
customer or user bases and other resources than we have could also enter our market and attempt to compete with us. If we do not successfully
compete with existing and future competitors, our business and prospects will be adversely affected.

Our business may be harmed if we fail to successfully transition certain of our existing customers to ActiveWorks.

        We have made a significant investment in developing ActiveWorks, and a majority of our customers are currently being served by our
ActiveWorks architecture at varying levels of integration. We are in the process of transitioning to ActiveWorks certain customers who continue
to use both our internally developed systems and acquired legacy systems. We are developing the additional features required to complete this
transition. In addition, as part of our growth strategy, we expect to continue to inherit legacy systems. We will evaluate these systems to
determine, based on their sophistication and compatibility, whether to integrate them into ActiveWorks or to migrate the customers using them
to ActiveWorks. This process is time consuming and requires the investment of significant technical and human resources. During this process,
we will continue to incur the costs and face the risks and difficulties associated with maintaining multiple legacy systems. During that transition
period, we may also experience service interruptions, system failures and security breaches due to the shortcomings of certain of the legacy
systems. Further, as we transition legacy systems to ActiveWorks, we may discontinue certain brands associated with those legacy systems and
we may encounter resistance from customers who have affinity for these brands. If we fail to complete the transition to ActiveWorks in a
cost-effective and timely manner and without service interruptions, system failures, security breaches or resistance from customers, our business
may be harmed.
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If our computer systems are compromised, we could be subject to fines, damages, litigation and enforcement actions and organizers and
participants could curtail or cease using our applications, the occurrence of which would harm our business.

Our computer systems involve the storage and transmission of non-public personal and credit card information provided by our customers and
participants. Despite our security measures, our computer systems are vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins and other attacks that could lead
to the unauthorized access, disclosure and use of non-public personal information, including credit card data. The techniques used by criminal
elements to attack our computer systems are sophisticated, change frequently and may originate from less regulated and remote areas of the
world. As a result, we may not be able to address these techniques proactively or implement adequate preventative measures. In one instance, we
became aware of a security breach in one of the legacy computer systems we inherited through one of our acquisitions. This type of breach could
potentially result in the unauthorized acquisition and use of credit card data of a number of participants. We promptly isolated the affected
computer system, conducted a forensic analysis of this breach, took steps to clean the affected computer system and implemented a remediation
plan to prevent any further breach. We cooperated with the federal authorities investigating the criminals who perpetrated the attack. We cannot
guarantee that we will be able to prevent a breach of our computer systems in the future. The breach of our computer systems may subject us to
fines, damages from claims asserted by payment processors, merchant banks, organizers and participants, litigation and enforcement actions. In
addition, if we experience further compromises of our computer systems, payment processors, merchant banks, organizers and participants may
lose confidence and cease using our applications, which would harm our business.

We are subject to data privacy laws and regulations as well as contractual privacy obligations, and our failure to comply could subject
us to fines and damages and would harm our reputation and business.

We are subject to the data privacy laws and regulations adopted by federal, state and foreign governmental agencies. Data privacy is highly
regulated, and may become the subject of additional regulation in the future. Privacy laws restrict our storage, use, processing, disclosure,
transfer and protection of non-public personal information, including credit card data, provided to us by our customers and participants. In
addition, we are subject to the privacy-related obligations in our contracts with our customers and other third parties (including voluntary
third-party certification bodies such as TRUSTe). Any failure by us to comply with applicable privacy laws or regulations, our contractual
privacy obligations or our own privacy policies, may result in fines, statutory or contractual damages or litigation or governmental enforcement
actions. Additionally, violations of our legal or contractual privacy obligations could cause organizers and participants to lose trust in us, which
would harm our reputation and business.

Our technology systems are vulnerable to damage, interruptions or failures, any of which could harm our reputation and business.

Our technology systems rely on computer hardware and communications systems located either in our facilities or at third-party facilities,
including our main web-hosting facilities in Burbank, California and Ashburn, Virginia. We do not control the operation of the third-party
facilities and must rely on third parties to provide the physical security, facilities management and communications infrastructure services to
ensure the reliable and consistent delivery of our solutions to our customers. Our web-hosting technology systems located at our facilities and at
third-party facilities are vulnerable to damage or interruption from catastrophic occurrences such as earthquakes, floods, fires, power loss,
telecommunications failures, terrorist attacks and similar unforeseen events. Despite any precautions we may take, the occurrence of a natural
disaster or other unexpected problems at one of our facilities or the facilities operated by third parties who house our equipment could result in
lengthy interruptions in our services.

We are in the process of implementing procedures designed to allow us to move our production operations over to a backup datacenter in the
event of a catastrophe. Although this program is functional, it does not provide a real-time failover in all instances, so if one of our websites
shuts down it would remain shut down for a period of time while the transition takes place, and during that time, the website would not be
accessible. In addition, the prolonged interruption of service of one or more of our websites that process transactions could result in potentially
significant losses.

We carry business interruption insurance but our coverage may not be sufficient to compensate us for the potentially significant losses that may
result from prolonged interruptions in our services as a result of system failures.

If credit card payment processors and service providers fail or no longer agree to provide their services or increase processing fees, our
customer relationships could be adversely affected and we could lose business and revenue.

We rely on agreements with large payment processing organizations to enable us to provide credit card authorization, data capture, settlement
and merchant accounting services, and access to various reporting tools for the customers we serve. Our credit card processors and service
providers could terminate their arrangements with us or fail to perform their services efficiently, each of which would adversely affect our
relationships with customers and could cause customers to discontinue using our applications. In addition, we cannot guarantee that credit card
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companies will not increase the transaction fees we incur for each registration we process. If credit card payment processors and service
providers fail or no longer agree to provide their services or increase processing fees, our customer relationships could be adversely affected and
we could lose business and revenue.
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We are subject to the rules and regulations adopted by the card networks, such as Visa, MasterCard and American Express, and if we
fail to adhere to their rules and regulations, we would be in breach of our contractual obligations to payment processors and merchant
banks, which could subject us to damages and liability and could eventually prevent us from processing or accepting credit cards.

The card networks, such as Visa, MasterCard and American Express, have adopted rules and regulations that apply to all merchants who process
and accept credit cards for payment of goods and services. We are obligated to comply with these rules and regulations as part of the contracts
we enter into with payment processors and merchant banks. The rules and regulations adopted by the card networks include the Payment Card
Industry Data Security Standards, or the PCI DSS. Under the PCI DSS, we are required to adopt and implement internal controls over the use,
storage and security of card data to help prevent credit card fraud. We assess our compliance with the PCI DSS on a periodic basis, and make
necessary improvements to our internal controls. If we fail to comply with the rules and regulations adopted by the card networks, including the
PCI DSS, we would be in breach our contractual obligations to payment processors and merchant banks. Such failure to comply may subject us
to fines, penalties, damages and civil liability, and could eventually prevent us from processing or accepting credit cards. Further, there is no
guarantee that even if we comply with the rules and regulations adopted by the card networks, we will be able to maintain our compliance. We
also cannot guarantee that such compliance will prevent illegal or improper use of our payments systems or the theft, loss or misuse of the credit
card data of customers or participants. Any such event would harm our reputation and business.

We face potential liability for the fraudulent activities of organizers and their employees, participants and our employees.

We have potential liability for losses caused by the fraudulent activities of our organizers or their employees. An organizer, or one of an
organizer�s employees, could use a stolen or counterfeit credit card or credit card number to record a false sales transaction, or intentionally fail
to deliver merchandise, events, activities or services sold in an otherwise valid transaction. We may also face potential liability for credit card
fraud by participants who register for an activity or complete a transaction through our applications. A participant could use a stolen credit card
or a stolen credit card number in a credit card-not-present transaction, to register for an activity or event or purchase merchandise or services. In
a traditional credit card-present transaction, if the merchant uses the credit card, receives authorization for the transaction from the credit card
issuing bank and verifies the signature on the back of the credit card against the paper receipt signed by the individual using the credit card, the
credit card issuing bank remains liable for any loss. In a fraudulent credit card-not-present transaction, we could be liable to the credit card
issuing bank for any loss arising from the transaction, even if we receive authorization for the transaction from the same credit card issuing bank.
In addition, we face potential fraud if our employees misappropriate or disclose to others who misappropriate the credit card or other sensitive
information of organizers or participants. We have implemented systems and procedures designed to detect and reduce the impact of organizer,
participant and employee fraud, but we cannot guarantee that these measures are or will be effective. It is possible that incidents of fraud could
increase in the future, and they may remain undetected for extended periods of time if our systems and procedures are not effective. Significant
or recurring credit card fraud could adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may face significant chargeback liability if our customers refuse or cannot reimburse chargebacks resolved in favor of participants
who register through our applications.

We may have potential liability for chargebacks associated with the transactions we process for certain of our organizer customers. If a billing
dispute relating to a transaction is not ultimately resolved in favor of the organizer, the disputed transaction is charged back to our bank and
credited to the credit card account of the participant. If we or our processing banks are unable to collect the chargeback from the organizer�s
account, or if the organizer refuses or is financially unable to reimburse us for the chargeback amount, we bear the risk of loss for the amount of
the refund paid to the participant�s credit card account. We have in the past experienced chargebacks related to cancelled and fraudulent events
and transactions. Significant or recurring chargeback amounts could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our business is subject to a variety of U.S. and foreign laws, many of which are unsettled and still developing, and which could subject
us to claims or otherwise harm our business.

We are subject to a variety of laws in the United States and abroad that are continuously evolving and developing, and that are costly to comply
with, can require significant management time and effort and can subject us to claims or other remedies. Existing and future laws and regulations
may be adopted, interpreted or implemented in a manner that is inconsistent with our current business practices or that require changes to such
practices, our privacy policy, the features and functionality of our applications or the design of our websites. These regulations and laws may
cover taxation, tariffs, user privacy, data protection, pricing, content, copyrights, distribution, electronic contracts and other communications,
consumer protection, broadband residential Internet access and the characteristics and quality of services. It is not clear how existing laws
governing issues such as property ownership, sales and other taxes, libel and personal privacy apply to the Internet. If we are not able to comply
with these laws and regulations or if we become liable under them, we could be directly harmed, and we may be forced to implement new
measures to reduce our exposure to this liability. This may require us to expend substantial resources or to discontinue certain practices, which
could negatively affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the increased attention focused on liability as a
result of lawsuits and legislative proposals could harm our reputation or otherwise harm our business.
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Our quarterly operating results are volatile, subject to seasonal fluctuations and difficult to predict, all of which may adversely affect
our stock price.

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated in the past and may fluctuate significantly in the future due to a variety of factors, many of which
are outside of our control. For example, we generally experience seasonality due to the greater number of activities and events during the spring
and summer months in North America. Other factors that may contribute to the variability of our quarterly and annual results include:

� our ability to accurately forecast revenue and appropriately plan our operating expenses;

� our ability to attract new, and increase the engagement and penetration of our existing, activity and event organizers;

� our ability to increase the number of participants who register for the activities and events offered by our customers using our
applications;

� our ability to control the cost and time required to transition certain customers to ActiveWorks;

� our ability to maintain and effectively manage an adequate rate of growth;

� our ability to successfully enter new markets and manage our planned global expansion;

� our ability to successfully manage and integrate our past and any future acquisitions of businesses, applications or technologies;

� our ability to limit interruptions in service and prevent the compromise of customer or participant data;

� the effects of natural or man-made catastrophic events;

� changes in the laws, regulations and legal standards affecting our business;

� our ability to keep pace with changes in technology and the offerings by our competitors;

� our ability to provide a high-quality participant experience through our applications and online communities;

� our ability to design and implement effective internal controls and processes;

� our ability to attract and retain qualified employees and key personnel;
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� our ability to protect our intellectual property, including our technology platform and our key brands;

� our ability to control the costs associated with defending intellectual property infringement and other claims by third parties; and

� the impact of worldwide economic conditions, including the resulting effect on consumer spending.
As a result, we believe that quarterly comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and that you should not rely on the
results of one quarter as an indication of our future performance. In addition, our operating results may continue to vary significantly from one
quarter to the next as part of our normal business cycle, which may adversely affect our stock price.

If we do not continue to enhance and improve our existing applications and successfully introduce new applications, our ability to
maintain the pricing of our applications and to attract and retain organizer customers will be harmed.

In the past we have grown our business in part through improving the functionality and features of our existing applications and introducing new
applications to our customers, such as fundraising, real-time event tracking and merchandising for activities and events. If we fail to continue to
offer new applications that increase the number of participants who register online for our customers� activities and events, and improve the
ability of our customers to manage their activities and events, we may be unable to maintain the pricing of our applications. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to timely and adequately develop additional functions and features or introduce new applications to satisfy the demands
of our customers. Further, developing new technologies and applications entails significant technical and business risks. We cannot assure you
that any new functions, features or applications will achieve the level of acceptance required for us to generate sufficient revenue to offset our
development costs. If we do not continue to enhance and improve the functions and features of our existing applications and successfully
introduce new applications, our ability to maintain the pricing of our applications and to attract and retain organizer customers will be harmed.

Activity and event organizers may not widely adopt our applications to manage the important aspects of their activities and events,
which would limit our ability to grow our business.

Our ability to grow our business and increase revenue depends on our success in educating activity and event organizers about the potential
benefits of our cloud computing applications. Cloud computing applications for organizing and managing important aspects of activities and
events are relatively new, and have not been widely adopted by activity and event organizers. Concerns about cost, fraud, privacy, security,
reliability and other issues may cause activity and event organizers not to adopt our applications. Moreover, activity and event organizers who
have already invested substantial resources in other registration and management systems or methods may be reluctant to adopt a new approach
like ours to supplement or replace existing systems or methods. If activity and event organizers do not widely adopt applications such as ours,
our ability to grow our business will be limited.
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If we fail to expand our customers� use of our applications, our ability to execute our growth strategy and increase our revenue will be
limited.

Many of our organizer customers initially make a purchase of only one or a limited number of our available applications or use our applications
for only one or a limited number of their activities or events. Our ability to grow our business and increase revenue is dependent on our ability to
further penetrate our existing customers by selling additional applications to them, and by increasing the number of activities and events for
which they deploy our applications. If we fail to expand the usage of our applications by our existing customers, our ability to execute our
growth strategy and increase our revenue will be limited.

If we are unable to increase the percentage of participants who register through our websites, our ability to grow our business will be
impaired.

In addition to expanding and increasing penetration within our organizer customer base, the growth of our business depends on our ability to
increase the percentage of participants who elect to register for activities and events through our websites. Our ability to increase the percentage
of participants who register through our websites depends on our ability to make our online registration and reservation processes simple,
efficient, secure and cost-effective, as well as on our ability to develop applications, such as our online communities, activity and event
information and searchable database of events, that encourage participants to use our websites. Our ability to increase participant use of our
websites also depends on the ability and willingness of our organizer customers to increase the awareness of our websites to their participants.
We cannot control the level of effort that organizers expend or the extent to which any of them will be successful in increasing awareness of our
websites among their participants. We may not be able to prevent organizers from devoting greater resources to support other registration
methods developed by them or other third parties. If we are unable to increase the percentage of participants who register for activities and
events through our websites, our ability to grow our business will be impaired.

We may not be successful in expanding into new business areas within the activity and event registration and management market,
which could harm our business and future prospects.

Our long-term strategic plan involves expanding our applications into new business areas within the activity and event registration and
management market. We cannot assure you that our efforts to expand our business in this manner will succeed. We also cannot assure you that
we will develop any new applications required to successfully compete in these new business areas in a cost-effective or timely manner. The
lack of market acceptance of such efforts or our inability to generate satisfactory revenue to offset the development costs could harm our
business and limit our future prospects.

The sales cycle for certain of our applications can be long, and we may not recognize revenue until completion of the entire sale, which
makes it difficult for us to forecast our operating results.

It can take us between three and nine months to complete a sale to an activity or event organizer, and at times it may take up to one year or
longer. The period between our initial contact with a potential customer and the completion of a sale may be relatively long due to several
factors, including:

� many activities and events occur only annually;

� our need to educate potential customers about the uses, benefits, safety and reliability of our applications;

� activity and event organizers have budget cycles which can affect the timing of purchases; and

� some organizers, such as park and recreation department administrators, have lengthy internal approval processes before having the
required authority to purchase our applications.

In addition, our customers may demand customization of the applications we provide them. As a result, these sales opportunities may require us
to devote greater sales and technical resources, increasing the cost and time required to complete sales. As a result, it is difficult to predict when
particular sales will occur or be completed, which adversely impacts our ability to accurately forecast our operating results.
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Negative factors affecting the activities and events market have an adverse effect on our business and revenue.

We primarily generate revenue from the registration and reservation fees paid by the participants in the activities and events offered by our
organizer customers. As a result, our business is directly affected by factors affecting the activities and events market, including global, national
or local consumer trends, adverse weather, security concerns or environmental disasters. Our performance is also subject to economic conditions
and their impact on levels of consumer spending, which may remain depressed, or be subject to further deterioration, for the foreseeable future.
Some of the factors that have had and may continue to have an adverse impact on discretionary consumer spending include general economic
conditions, unemployment, consumer debt, reductions in net worth, disruptions in the residential real estate or mortgage markets, higher
taxation, energy prices or interest rates and decreases in consumer confidence and other macroeconomic factors. Because spending for activities
is generally considered to be discretionary, declines in
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consumer spending may have a more negative effect on our business than on those businesses that sell products or services considered to be
necessities. Unfavorable changes in the above factors or in other business and economic conditions affecting our activity and event customers
and their participants could cause organizers to cancel activities, result in fewer participants using our applications to register for activities, lower
our profit margins, cause our activity and event customers to terminate their relationship with us or default on their payment obligations to us,
any of which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

If our customers do not renew their agreements for our applications, our business and operating results will suffer.

We currently generate a majority of our revenue from customers who have entered into contracts with us with terms ranging from three to seven
years. However, we have a number of customers with contract terms under three years. Our customers are not obligated to renew their contracts
with us. Even if our customers perceive our applications to be of value, budgetary, economic or other competitive pressures may prevent some
customers from renewing their contracts. If we are not successful in continuing to renew or extend the terms of our contracts with our existing
customers, our business and operating results will suffer.

Our ability to grow our business will be impaired if we do not provide high quality customer support in a timely and cost-effective
manner.

Our ability to maintain and increase our customer base and the number of participants who use our applications depends significantly on our
ability to provide high quality levels of service and support. Complaints or negative publicity about our service or support could severely
diminish confidence in or use of our applications. We spend significant time and resources to hire, train and retain our service and support
personnel. In addition, we are required to hire temporary employees each year to provide customer service and support during peak registration
seasons. These temporary employees require training and education and take time to reach full productivity. If we are not successful in timely
hiring, training and retaining our service and support personnel or otherwise fail to provide high quality service and support to organizers and
participants, our ability to grow our business will be impaired.

Our ability to improve our operating margins may be limited by the requirements imposed by our government agency customers.

We acquired the state hunting and fishing business of Automated License System and Central Trust Bank in October 2008 and the campground
registration business of ReserveAmerica in January 2009. We currently operate registration services for fishing and hunting licenses in 24 states,
and provide registration and management services for campgrounds located in 33 states in the U.S. Our government agency customers often
require us to customize our applications and provide additional services to their participants to qualify for these contracts. For example, we are
typically required to maintain call centers for these customers to allow participants to register telephonically and receive telephonic customer
service and support. We continue to focus on ways to encourage participants to use the self-service features available through our websites,
however, each year we are required to hire temporary employees and independent contractors to staff our call centers during peak registration
periods. A number of our state customers require us to maintain a physical call center located in their particular state. Additionally, our state
customers typically require us to provide third-party audits of our operations. These additional requirements are costly to comply with and add to
the complexity of our business. If we are unable to properly manage and control the cost of the additional services required by our government
agency customers, our operating margins will suffer and our business and results would be harmed.

We may be unsuccessful in expanding our operations outside of North America, which could negatively impact our growth strategy,
revenue and future growth.

Our headquarters are located in the United States. To date, we have operated primarily in North America, and we have limited operations
internationally. Expansion outside of North America is an important aspect of our future growth strategy. Our ability to expand outside of North
America involves various risks and difficulties, including:

� incurring significant expenses in advance of generating material revenue as we attempt to establish our presence in international
markets;

� operating in unfamiliar competitive environments;
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� distraction of management and company resources;

� different participant preferences and participation patterns than those in North America;

� varied, unfamiliar and unclear legal and regulatory requirements and restrictions;

� potentially greater susceptibility to fraud and security breaches;

� pricing controls, legal, political or systemic restrictions on the ability of U.S. companies to compete with foreign competitors or
otherwise do business in foreign countries;

� less extensive adoption of the Internet as a commerce medium or information source and increased restrictions on privacy or the use
of customer and participant data;
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� lack of infrastructure to adequately conduct electronic commerce transactions and data storage and management;

� difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations;

� greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection;

� currency fluctuations or other restrictions on foreign currency; and

� potential adverse tax consequences.
As a result of these obstacles, we may find it difficult to expand outside of North America or we may be unsuccessful in our attempt to do so,
which would negatively impact our growth strategy, revenue and future growth.

We may not timely and effectively scale and adapt our existing technology and network infrastructure to ensure that our websites are
accessible with little or no perceptible load times.

A key element in our continued growth is the ability of organizers and participants to access our websites at all times with little or no perceptible
load times. This has become increasingly difficult to achieve as our applications have become more complex and our user traffic has increased.
Strains on the capacity of our technology infrastructure caused by growth in the numbers of organizers and participants accessing our websites,
new applications and features and overall engagement on our websites, especially at the opening of the registration period for a popular activity,
have in the past resulted, and may in the future result in, slower load times or system failures. We have experienced website disruptions, outages
and other performance problems due to a variety of factors, including maintaining multiple legacy systems, infrastructure changes, power
failure, telecommunication outages, human or software errors and capacity constraints caused by overwhelming numbers of users accessing our
websites simultaneously. If our websites are not available when users attempt to access them or do not function as expected, our customers may
select another option to organize and manage their activities and events and participants may select alternative means of researching and
registering for activities and events, each of which would negatively impact our business.

We expect to continue to make significant investments to upgrade our technology and network infrastructure to handle increased usage and to
enable the timely and effective release of new applications. These upgrades and expansions are complex and in the past have resulted, and in the
future could result, in website outages or inefficiencies or operational failures. To the extent that we do not effectively address infrastructure
challenges, upgrade our systems as needed and continually develop our technology and network architecture, our business and operating results
may be harmed.

If Internet search engines� methodologies are modified or our search result page rankings decline for other reasons, participant
engagement in our websites and online communities could decline.

We depend in part on various Internet search engines to direct a significant amount of traffic to our websites. Our ability to maintain the number
of potential participants directed to our websites is not entirely within our control. Our competitors� search engine optimization, or SEO, efforts
may result in their websites receiving a higher search result page ranking than ours, or Internet search engines could revise their methodologies
in an attempt to improve search results, which could adversely affect placement of our search result page rankings. If search engine companies
revise their search algorithms in ways that are detrimental to new participant growth on our websites or in ways that make it more difficult for
organizers or participants to use our websites, or if competitors� SEO efforts are more successful than ours, the overall growth in the numbers of
organizers and participants using our websites could slow, participant engagement could decrease, and we could lose existing participants and
become less attractive to existing and prospective organizer customers. Our websites have experienced fluctuations in search result rankings in
the past, and we anticipate similar fluctuations in the future. Any reduction in the number of participants directed to our website would harm our
business and operating results.

Our ability to establish, maintain and strengthen our brands in the activities and events market is critical to our growth strategy.

Promoting and maintaining our brands is critical to our efforts to attract and retain our organizer customers and to increase the number of
participants who use our applications. We also believe brand recognition is critical to allow us to effectively compete against the growing
number of Internet sites and relatively low initial barriers to entry in certain of our markets. If we are unable to establish and maintain our
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brands, including THE ACTIVE NETWORK, ACTIVE, ACTIVE.COM, ACTIVENET, ACTIVEWORKS, REGONLINE and
RESERVEAMERICA, as leaders for online registration and management applications in the activities and events market, our business and
prospects would be materially and adversely affected.

We may experience difficulty in developing marketing services that are attractive to advertisers and promoters.

The market for marketing services such as ours is relatively new and rapidly evolving. We cannot be certain this market will continue to grow.
Our marketing services customers may determine that it is in their best interest to spend their marketing budgets through other forms of
promotional or advertising activities. As a result, if we fail to develop compelling marketing services for advertisers and promoters, our ability to
sustain and grow our marketing services business would be adversely affected.
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If we fail to maintain and grow our user base of participants and the data we gain access to from such participants, potential advertisers
may not utilize our marketing services, which may result in reduced revenue.

We use a wide range of data to expand, refine and target our marketing services on behalf of our customers. We gain access to most of this data
from participants as they �opt-in� to receive special offers and other direct marketing opportunities from our marketing services customers and us
and the registration process for activities and events using our application services. If we are unable to maintain and grow our user base of
participants and the data we gain access to from such participants, potential advertisers may not utilize our marketing services and we may lose
significant marketing services revenue.

We might not be able to attract and retain employees, which could impede our ability to grow and successfully generate our business.

Any failure to attract and retain qualified, experienced employees could adversely affect our ability to grow our business. To execute our
continuing growth plans, we need to increase the size and maintain the quality of our staff of direct sales and business development
representatives and technology development staff. To be successful, we must attract and retain highly qualified sales and other personnel with
specialized skill sets focused on the activities and events industry. Competition for qualified and experienced sales and other personnel can be
intense, and we might not be successful in attracting and retaining such individuals. We have from time to time experienced, and we expect to
continue to experience in the future, difficulty in hiring and retaining a sufficient number of highly skilled employees with appropriate
qualifications for our business.

Our business and prospects could be harmed if we lose members of our senior management team.

Our performance is substantially dependent on the continued services and on the performance of our senior management and other key
personnel, particularly David Alberga, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Matthew Landa, our President and Director,
Scott Mendel, our Chief Financial Officer and Darko Dejanovic, our Chief Technology, Product and Innovation Officer. Our performance also
depends on our ability to retain and motivate other officers and key employees. We do not have long-term employment agreements with the
members of our senior management or other key personnel. In addition, we do not maintain key-man insurance on these individuals. The loss of
the services of any member of our senior management or other key employee for any reason would harm our business.

If we cannot maintain our corporate culture as we grow and evolve, we could lose the innovation, creativity and teamwork that this
culture has fostered.

We believe that a critical contributor to our success has been our corporate culture, which we believe fosters innovation, creativity and
teamwork. Maintaining this corporate culture will become increasingly difficult as we grow and implement the more complex organizational
management structures necessary to support our growth and to comply with the requirements imposed on public companies. Failure to maintain
and further develop our culture could negatively impact our future success. In addition, our initial public offering may have created disparities in
wealth among our employees, which could adversely impact relations among employees and our corporate culture in general.

If the protection of our technology platform, domain name, trademarks and other proprietary rights is inadequate, our business would
be harmed.

Our commercial success is dependent in part on obtaining, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights. We rely on a combination
of trade secret, trademark, copyright, trade dress, domain name and patent laws in the United States and in the other jurisdictions in which we
operate, together with confidentiality agreements and technical measures, to protect our intellectual property. We pursue the registration of
our trademarks, service marks and domain names in the United States. Our registered trademarks in the United States include THE ACTIVE
NETWORK, ACTIVE, ACTIVE.COM, ACTIVENET, ACTIVEWORKS, REGONLINE and RESERVEAMERICA. As of September 30,
2011, we have been granted two patents by the United States Patent and Trademark Office and have two patent applications pending in the
United States. Our patents expire in February 2019 and July 2021, respectively. We rely more heavily on trade secret protection than patents to
protect our proprietary technology. To protect our trade secrets, we control access to our proprietary systems and technology and enter into
confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our employees and consultants and confidentiality agreements with other third parties.
In addition, due to the relatively high cost associated with registering all of our copyrights, we generally rely on common-law copyright laws to
protect these rights.

The steps we have taken and take in the future to protect our proprietary rights may be inadequate. For example, confidentiality agreements with
our employees, licenses, independent contractors and other advisors may not effectively prevent disclosure of confidential information and may
not provide an adequate remedy in the event of unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. In addition, third parties may independently
discover trade secrets and proprietary information, and in such cases, we may not be able
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to successfully assert trade secret rights against such parties. Costly and time-consuming litigation could be necessary to enforce and determine
the scope of our proprietary rights. If we are unable to obtain, maintain and enforce intellectual property protection covering our technology
platform, brands and domain names, others may be able to make, use or sell products that are substantially similar to ours without incurring the
sizeable development costs that we have incurred, which would adversely affect our ability to compete.

In addition, the domain names for the websites that we maintain are important to our business. The regulation of domain names in the United
States and in foreign countries is unclear and subject to change. Governing bodies may establish additional top-level domains, appoint additional
domain name registrars or modify the requirements for holding domain names. As a result, we cannot assure you that we will be able to acquire
or maintain relevant domain names. The relationship between regulations governing domain names and laws protecting trademarks and similar
proprietary rights is also unclear. As a result, we may be unable to prevent third parties from acquiring domain names that are similar to, infringe
upon or otherwise decrease the value of our domain names, and trademarks and other proprietary rights. Any such inability could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Intellectual property claims against us could be costly and could hurt our business, operating results, financial condition and prospects.

We cannot predict whether third parties will assert claims of infringement or other intellectual property claims against us. If we are forced to
defend against third party claims, whether they are with or without merit or are determined in our favor, we could face expensive and time
consuming litigation, which could distract our technical and management personnel. In the past, we received a notice from a third party alleging
that our Internet fundraising program and related website operations infringe patents published by such third party. In the future, we may receive
other notices from, or have lawsuits filed against us by, third parties alleging infringement. If an infringement claim is determined against us, we
may be required, or deem it advisable, to develop non-infringing intellectual property or enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements. Such
royalty or licensing agreements, if required, may be unavailable on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. If a third party successfully asserts
an infringement claim against us and we are required to pay monetary damages or royalties or we are unable to develop suitable non-infringing
alternatives or license the infringed or similar intellectual property on reasonable terms and on a timely basis, it could significantly harm our
business.

In addition, third parties may seek to invalidate our intellectual property. For example, in May 2010, we filed a lawsuit against Electronic Arts
Inc. d/b/a EA Sports, in the U.S. District Court, Southern District of California, alleging that the �EA SPORTS Active� and �EA SPORTS
Active More Workouts� fitness games and associated website violated our trademark rights. EA Sports filed a counter-claim seeking to invalidate
our U.S. trademark registrations for �ACTIVE,� �ACTIVE.COM� and �THE ACTIVE NETWORK.� We filed a preliminary injunction, which was
denied in August 2010. In May 2011, we entered into a settlement agreement with EA Sports and the parties filed a joint stipulation of dismissal
of the action without prejudice. Concurrently with the filing of the joint stipulation, the parties filed a joint motion requesting the court to vacate
the order denying the preliminary injunction on the condition that immediately upon the filing of any future legal proceedings between the
parties, the preliminary injunction order shall be reinstated. We do not believe the terms of the settlement will have a material adverse effect on
our business.

As a result of becoming a public company, we will be obligated to develop and maintain proper and effective internal controls over
financial reporting. We may not complete our analysis of our internal controls over financial reporting in a timely manner, or these
internal controls may not be determined to be effective, which may adversely affect investor confidence in our company and, as a result,
the value of our common stock.

We will be required, pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting for the first fiscal year following our initial public offering. This assessment will
need to include disclosure of any material weaknesses identified by our management in our internal control over financial reporting, as well as a
statement that our auditors have issued an attestation report on our management�s assessment of our internal controls. We are in the early stages
of the costly and challenging process of compiling the system and processing documentation necessary to perform the evaluation needed to
comply with Section 404. Although as of September 30, 2011, we have no material weaknesses in our internal controls, we have undertaken
significant measures to improve the effectiveness of our internal controls in response to material weaknesses we have had in the past which have
been remediated. These measures include strengthening our internal staffing and technical expertise in financial accounting and SEC reporting
and developing robust review processes and procedures. We plan to continue to assess our internal controls and procedures and intend to take
further action as necessary or appropriate to address any other matters we or our independent auditors identify. We cannot assure you that there
will not be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls in the future. If we are unable to assert that our internal control
over financial reporting is effective, or if our auditors are unable to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls, we could
lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which would cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Our reserves for state sales taxes may not be sufficient.
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Certain states in which we operate impose sales, purchase and use taxes on transactions completed through our applications. At this time, many
of our systems do not automatically capture the sales, purchase and use taxes we are required to remit to these states.
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As a result, we are required to analyze our transactions, and reserve an appropriate amount for the payment of state sales, purchase and use taxes.
We regularly review the procedures we use to calculate our sales tax obligations as well as our sales tax reserves, and make adjustments when
appropriate. Although we believe that our sales tax reserves are adequate, we may not be fully reserved and it is possible that we may be
obligated to pay amounts in excess of our reserves.

We may not be able to realize the tax benefits associated with the net operating losses we have recorded to date.

As of December 31, 2010, we had federal tax net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $102.1 million which will begin to expire in
2019 and state tax net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $76.4 million which begin to expire in 2011. If we do not maintain
sufficient profitability prior to the expiration of these net operating loss carry forwards, then we will not be able to fully use such tax attributes to
our benefit. Additional limitations on the annual use of these net operating loss carry forwards may also apply due to subsequent issuances of our
stock.

Covenants in our debt agreement may restrict our operations in the event we borrow funds under our line of credit, and if we do not
effectively manage our business to comply with these covenants, our financial condition could be adversely affected.

In the event we borrow funds under our line of credit, we must comply with various covenants that limit our ability to, among other things:

� incur or assume liens or additional debt or provide guarantees in respect of obligations of other persons;

� pay cash dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock;

� prepay, redeem or repurchase debt;

� make loans and investments;

� enter into agreements that restrict distributions from our subsidiaries;

� sell assets and capital stock of our subsidiaries;

� enter into certain transactions with affiliates; and

� consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substantially all of our assets to, another person.
In addition, under our credit facility, we are required to maintain a specified financial ratio. Our ability to meet this financial covenant can be
affected by events beyond our control, and we may be unable to meet this test. In addition, our failure to maintain effective internal controls to
measure compliance with this financial covenant could affect our ability to take corrective actions on a timely basis, and could result in our
being in breach of this covenant. Our debt agreements provide that our breach or failure to satisfy certain covenants constitute an event of
default. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the lender could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under one or more of our debt
agreements to be immediately due and payable. If we are unable to repay those amounts, our financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are subject to a risk of loss based upon the solvency of the financial institutions
in which they are maintained.
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We maintain the majority of our cash and cash equivalents in accounts with major financial institutions within the United States, in the form of
demand deposits and money market accounts. Our deposits in these institutions may generally exceed the amounts of insurance provided, or
deposits may not at all be covered by insurance. If any of these institutions become insolvent, it could substantially harm our financial condition
and we may lose some, or all, of such deposits.

Changes in accounting standards and subjective assumptions, estimates and judgments by management related to complex accounting
matters could significantly change our reported or expected financial results.

Generally accepted accounting principles and related accounting pronouncements, implementation guidelines and interpretations with regard to a
wide range of matters that are relevant to our business, including but not limited to, revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts,
software development costs, stock-based compensation, business combinations, impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets,
and accounting for income taxes are highly complex and involve many subjective assumptions, estimates and judgments by our management.
Changes in these rules or their interpretation or changes in underlying assumptions, estimates or judgments by our management could
significantly change our reported or expected financial performance.

We are currently in the process of transitioning certain of our customers who are using the legacy systems we inherited in our
acquisitions to ActiveWorks. Until we complete this transition, we may not be able to compare our key business metrics on a
period-to-period basis in a manner consistent with the rest of our business, and as a result, our ability to manage our business could be
adversely affected.
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We manage our business based in part on key business metrics regarding the total number of customer organizations we serve and the total
number of registrations we process during a specific financial period. We are currently in the process of transitioning our customers who are
currently using the legacy systems we inherited in our acquisitions to ActiveWorks. Until we complete this transition, participants for certain
activities and events will continue registering through these legacy systems. Certain of these legacy systems do not track customers and
registrations in a manner consistent with the rest of our business. As a result, we need to use manual processes to accumulate these metrics,
which could lead to errors. If we are unable to accurately compare our key business metrics on a period-to-period basis, our ability to manage
our business could be adversely affected.

If the estimates and assumptions we use to determine the size of our target market, customer groups or the verticals within customer
groups are inaccurate, our future growth rate may be limited and our business would be harmed.

We calculate the size of our target market, customers groups and verticals within customer groups, based on data published by third parties and
on assumptions that we have made based on that data. We have not independently verified any third-party information and cannot assure you of
its accuracy or completeness. While we believe our market size information is generally reliable, such information is inherently imprecise. In
addition, our projections, assumptions and estimates of future opportunities within our target market are necessarily subject to a high degree of
uncertainty and risk due to a variety of factors, including those described in this risk factors section. If third-party data proves to be inaccurate or
we make errors in our assumptions based on that data, our future growth rate may be limited. In addition, these inaccuracies or errors may cause
us to misallocate capital and other business resources, which could harm our business. In the third quarter of 2011, we identified previously
unreported registration data during the first and second quarters of 2011. As a result, we underreported the number of registrations for these prior
periods. We identified that the underreporting resulted primarily from the prior lack of the reporting systems of two new state customers. The
underreporting has no impact on our prior financial statements, nor do we believe the underreporting has a material adverse effect on our
business.

Risks Relating To Ownership Of Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be volatile.

The market price of our common stock may be subject to significant fluctuations. Factors that could affect our stock price include the following:

� fluctuations in our operating results or the operating results of our competitors;

� changes in estimates of our financial results or recommendations by securities analysts;

� changes in the estimates of the future size and growth rate of our markets;

� changes in accounting principles or changes in interpretations of existing principles, which could affect our financial results;

� conditions and trends in the markets we serve;

� changes in general economic, industry and market conditions;

� success of competitive applications and services;

� changes in market valuations or earnings of our competitors;
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� changes in our pricing policies or the pricing policies of our competitors;

� announcements of significant new applications, contracts, acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or our competitors;

� changes in legislation or regulatory policies, practices or actions;

� the commencement or outcome of litigation involving our company, our general industry or both;

� recruitment or departure of key personnel;

� changes in our capital structure, such as future issuances of securities or the incurrence of debt;

� actual or expected sales of our common stock by the holders of our common stock; and

� the trading volume of our common stock.
In addition, the U.S. and worldwide stock markets in general have experienced significant price and trading volume fluctuations, and the market
prices of technology and Internet companies have generally been extremely volatile and have experienced sharp share price and trading volume
changes. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources, divert management�s attention and affect our ability to attract
and retain qualified board members.

As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act,
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Act, the listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange and other

48

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 91



Table of Contents

applicable securities rules and regulations. Compliance with these rules and regulations increase our legal and financial compliance costs, make
some activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly and increase demand on our systems and resources. The Exchange Act requires, among
other things, that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and operating results. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. In
order to maintain and, if required, improve our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting to meet this
standard, significant resources and management oversight may be required. As a result, management�s attention may be diverted from other
business concerns, which could harm our business and operating results. Although we have already hired additional employees to comply with
these requirements, we may need to hire more employees in the future, which will increase our costs and expenses.

In addition, changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure are creating uncertainty for public
companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some activities more time-consuming. These laws, regulations and
standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may
evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding
compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We intend to invest resources to
comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a
diversion of management�s time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new laws,
regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to practice, regulatory
authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us and our business may be harmed.

Any new rules and regulations may increase the cost for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to accept
reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and
retain qualified executive officers and members of our board of directors, particularly to serve on our audit committee and compensation
committee.

As a result of our public disclosure requirements, our business and financial condition has become more visible, which we believe may result in
threatened or actual litigation, including by competitors and other third parties. If such claims are successful, our business and operating results
could be harmed, and even if the claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary
to resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and harm our business and operating results.

We do not expect to declare any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to invest our future earnings, if any, to fund the development and growth of our business. The payment of dividends will be
at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our results of operations, capital requirements, financial condition, future
prospects, restrictions imposed by applicable law, any limitations on payments of dividends present in any debt agreements we may enter into
and other factors our Board of Directors may deem relevant. Consequently, stockholders may need to rely on sales of their common stock after
price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any future gains on their investment. Investors seeking cash dividends
should not purchase our common stock.

Our directors, executive officers and significant stockholders hold a substantial portion of our stock, which may lead to conflicts of
interest with other stockholders over corporate transactions and other corporate matters.

Our directors, executive officers and beneficial holders of 10% or more of our outstanding common stock beneficially own approximately 49.3%
of our outstanding common stock, including warrants and stock options exercisable within 60 days after September 30, 2011. We are not aware
of any stockholder or voting agreements or understandings between or among our directors, officers or current beneficial holders of 10% or
more of our outstanding common stock. However, these stockholders, acting together, would be able to influence significantly all matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and significant corporate transactions such as mergers or other business
combinations. This control could delay, deter or prevent a third party from acquiring or merging with us, which could adversely affect the
market price of our common stock.

A substantial majority of our total outstanding shares are currently restricted from immediate resale, but may be sold on a stock
exchange in the near future. The large number of shares eligible for public sale or subject to rights requiring us to register them for
public sale could depress the market price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our common stock in the market in the
future, and the perception that these sales could occur may also depress the market price of our common stock. As of September 30, 2011, we
had 54,259,369 shares of common stock outstanding. Of these shares, a substantial majority are currently restricted as a result of securities laws,
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49

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 93



Table of Contents

Beginning on such date, stockholders owning an aggregate of approximately 35,084,185 shares will be entitled, under contracts providing for
registration rights, to require us to register shares of our common stock owned by them for public sale in the United States, subject to the
restrictions of Rule 144.

In addition, we have registered 18,499,787 shares previously issued or reserved for future issuance under our equity compensation plans and
agreements. Subject to the satisfaction of applicable exercise periods and, in certain cases, lock-up agreements, the shares of common stock
issued upon exercise of outstanding options will be available for immediate resale in the United States in the open market.

Sales of our common stock as restrictions end or pursuant to registration rights may make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the
future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate. These sales also could cause our stock price to fall and make it more difficult for you to
sell shares of our common stock.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish or cease publishing research or reports about us, our business or our market, or if they
change their recommendations regarding our stock adversely, our stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will be influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts may publish about
us, our business, our market or our competitors. If any of the analysts who may cover us change their recommendation regarding our stock
adversely, or provide more favorable relative recommendations about our competitors, our stock price would likely decline. If any analyst who
may cover us were to cease coverage of our company or fail to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets,
which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline.

Our future capital needs are uncertain, and we may need to raise additional funds in the future, which may not be available on
acceptable terms or at all.

Our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including:

� acceptance of, and demand for, our applications;

� the costs of developing new applications or technology;

� the timing of transitioning our customers to ActiveWorks;

� the number and timing of acquisitions and other strategic transactions; and

� the costs associated with the growth of our business.
Our existing sources of cash and cash flows may not be sufficient to fund all of our activities. While we believe we have sufficient capital to
conduct our plan of business for at least the next 12 months, we may need to raise additional funds following such time, and such funds may not
be available on reasonable terms, or at all. Furthermore, if we issue equity or convertible debt securities to raise additional funds, our existing
stockholders may experience dilution, and the new equity or debt securities may have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of our
existing stockholders. If we incur additional debt, it may increase our leverage relative to our earnings or to our equity capitalization. If we
cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, we may not be able to develop or enhance our applications, execute our business plan, take advantage of
future opportunities or respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated customer requirements.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us more difficult, limit
attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current directors and management team and limit the market price of our
common stock.

Edgar Filing: ACTIVE NETWORK INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 94



Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain provisions that may delay or prevent a change in
control, discourage bids at a premium over the market price of our common stock and adversely affect the market price of our common stock
and the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock. These provisions include:

� dividing our board into three classes, with each class serving a staggered three-year term;

� prohibiting our stockholders from calling a special meeting of stockholders or acting by written consent;

� permitting our board to issue additional shares of our preferred stock, with such rights, preferences and privileges as they may
designate, including the right to approve an acquisition or other changes in control;

� establishing an advance notice procedure for stockholder proposals to be brought before an annual meeting, including proposed
nominations of persons for election to our board of directors;

� providing that our directors may be removed only for cause;

� providing that vacancies on our board of directors may be filled only by a majority of directors then in office, even though less than a
quorum; and

� requiring the approval of our board of directors or the holders of a supermajority of our outstanding shares of capital stock to amend
our bylaws and certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation.
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Although we believe these provisions collectively provide for an opportunity to receive higher bids by requiring potential acquirers to negotiate
with our board, they would apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some stockholders. In addition, these provisions may
frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management team by making it more difficult for
stockholders to replace members of our board, which is responsible for appointing the members of our management.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

Our initial public offering of common stock was effected through a Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-172254) that was declared
effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 24, 2011, which registered an aggregate of 12,650,000 shares of our common
stock, including 1,650,000 shares that the underwriters had the option to purchase. On May 31, 2011, 8,222,222 shares of common stock were
sold on our behalf and 4,427,778 shares of common stock were sold on behalf of the selling stockholders, including 1,650,000 shares sold by the
selling stockholders upon exercise in full of the underwriters� option to purchase additional shares, at an initial public offering price of $15.00 per
share, for an aggregate gross offering price of $123,333,330 to us, and $66,416,670 to the selling stockholders. Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. served as the managing underwriters of the initial public offering. Following the sale of the shares in
connection with the closing of the initial public offering, the offering terminated.

As a result of the offering, we received net proceeds of approximately $112.6 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions
of approximately $8.6 million and additional offering-related expenses, net of reimbursements, of approximately $2.1 million. We did not
receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling shareholders. No offering expenses were paid directly or indirectly to (i) any of our
officers or directors or their associates, (ii) any persons owning 10% or more of any class of our equity securities, or (iii) any of our affiliates.

There was no material change in the use of proceeds from our initial public offering as described in our final prospectus filed with the SEC
pursuant to Rule 424(b). From the effective date of the registration statement through September 30, 2011, we have used the net proceeds of the
offering for repayment of debt and general corporate purposes, including expenditures for financing our growth, developing additional
application services functionality and features, acquiring new customers and funding capital expenditures. We invested the funds received in
short-term, interest bearing, investment-grade securities.

ITEM 3. DEFAULT UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED)

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
Departure of Named Executive Officer

On November 14, 2011, we entered into a Transition Services Agreement with Jon Belmonte, one of our named executive officers, pursuant to
which Mr. Belmonte will be stepping down from his position of Chief Media Officer. Mr. Belmonte has agreed to continue his employment with
the company to assist in the transition process as a special corporate projects advisor through December 31, 2011 (the �Departure Date�). In
consideration for his continued service through the Departure Date and his agreement to a general release and certain other standard terms and
conditions, (i) the vesting of 71,041 of Mr. Belmonte�s outstanding options will fully accelerate on the Departure Date and (ii) all of Mr.
Belmonte�s vested stock options as of the Departure Date will remain exercisable for a period of one year following the Departure Date. Mr.
Belmonte also will be eligible to receive his 2011 annual incentive compensation bonus to which he would otherwise have been entitled had he
remained employed by the company through the bonus payment date.
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The foregoing description of the Transition Services Agreement is qualified in its entirety be reference to the full text of such agreement, a copy
of which is attached as Exhibit 10.32 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

The Active Network, Inc.

Date: November 14, 2011 By: /S/    DAVID ALBERGA        

David Alberga
Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: November 14, 2011 By: /s/    SCOTT MENDEL        

Scott Mendel
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

  10.6L Eleventh Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated August 15, 2011, by and between Square 1 Bank and
Registrant.

  10.31# Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under 2011 Equity Incentive Award Plan.

  10.32# Transition Services Agreement, dated November 14, 2011, by and between Jon Belmonte and Registrant.

  31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 promulgated pursuant to the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

  31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 promulgated pursuant to the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

  32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
* These certifications are being furnished solely to accompany this quarterly report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, and are not being

filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of The
Active Network, Inc., whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.

** Pursuant to applicable securities laws and regulations, we are deemed to have complied with the reporting obligation relating to the
submission of interactive data files in such exhibits and are not subject to liability under any anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities
laws as long as we have made a good faith attempt to comply with the submission requirements and promptly amend the interactive data
files after becoming aware that the interactive data files fail to comply with the submission requirements. Users of this data are advised
that, pursuant to Rule 406T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed and otherwise are not subject to liability.
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